
 

             AGENDA 
              ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, January 19, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR  97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 

(a) Mayoral Boards and Commissions Appointments 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered 
separately.  Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City 
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) City Council Minutes of 12/21/15 
(b) Department Project Status Reports 

(1) Community Development  
(2) Finance Department 
(3) Library  
(4) Parks and Recreation  
(5) Police Department  
(6) Public Works  

(c) Pump Station No. 1 Upgrades – Progressive Design Build Contract Amendment for 
Equipment Procurement (Public Works) 

(d) OR202 Sidewalk Project – Local Agency Agreement (Public Works) 
(e) 23rd Street Closure – Local Agency Agreement (Public Works) 
(f) Astoria Senior Center Renovation – Construction Contract Amendment No. 4 (Public 

Works) 
(g) Loan Agreement R17794 Amendment (Finance) 
(h) 16th Street CSO Separation Project – Pay Adjustment No. 5 

 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.  
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized.  In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) Ordinance Readopting Oregon Revised Statutes – Code Section 1.047 (2nd reading & 

adoption) (City Attorney) 
(b) Public Hearings – Appeals by Ron Zilli (Community Development) 

(1) AP15-01 – New Construction Permit NC15-03 for Verizon Wireless  
(2) AP15-02 – Variance V15-03 for Verizon Wireless  
(3) AP15-03 – Wireless Communications Facility Permit WCF15-03 for Verizon Wireless 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE HEARING 
IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY CONTACTING 

JULIE YUILL, CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE, 503-325-5824. 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 

 
 
January 14, 2016 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JANUARY 19, 2016 
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
Item 3(a): Mayoral Board and Commission Appointments 
 

Mayor Arline LaMear will make appointments to the City of Astoria’s various 
Boards and Commissions. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 5(a): City Council Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of December 21, 2015 are enclosed for 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council 
approve these minutes. 

 
Item 5(b): Department Project Status Reports 
 

Enclosed for the City Council’s information are status reports for the following 
City Departments:  (1) Community Development, (2) Finance Department,       
(3) Library, (4) Parks and Recreation, (5) Police Department, and (6) Public 
Works.  

 
Item 5(c): Pump Station No. 1 Upgrades – Progressive Design Build Contract 

Amendment for Equipment Procurement (Public Works) 
 

In September 2015, Council awarded Phase 1 of a Progressive Design Build 
contract for this project to Portland Engineering, Inc. (PEI). Phase 1 included 
design and development of a lump sum price for installation of the equipment.  
Upon evaluation of the existing conditions at PS#1, PEI recommended 
expanding the scope to include replacement of the motor control center, 
installing a harmonic filter and replacing the variable frequency drive to the third 



Page 2 of 6 

pump.  This expanded scope allows a better integration of new equipment with 
old and reduces the risk of incompatibility.  The increased cost of the project 
due to the expanded scope exceeds the approved budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2015-16. Summer installation will allow the increased project cost to be 
distributed over two fiscal years with procurement of equipment and parts 
occurring in FY 2015-16 then installation, programming and training in FY 2016-
17.  The project budget has increased from the preliminary estimate of 
$225,000 to $376,792. This budget includes 7% contingency, which is less than 
a typical 10% contingency because the work is aboveground. 

 
Energy Trust of Oregon has a provided a grant incentive in the amount of up to 
$72,940 for this project.  The incentive is the maximum grant amount allowed 
for replacing the VFDs and installing a new control system.  The final incentive 
will be based on measured energy savings.  Funding for the Phase 2 contract 
amendment is available in the Public Works Improvement Fund for the current 
fiscal year. The contract amendment for Phase 3 will be presented to Council at 
the first meeting in FY 2016-17.  It is recommended that Council authorize a 
contract amendment with Portland Engineering, Inc. for Phase 2 of the Pump 
Station No. 1 Upgrades Project for $148,263.00 to purchase equipment and 
parts.  

 
Item 5(d): OR202 Sidewalk Project – Local Agency Agreement (Public Works) 
 

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), through the Multimodal 
Transportation Enhance Program (MTEP), is providing funding for pedestrian 
improvements between Astoria High School and Hanover Street.  The total 
estimated project cost is $2,500,000.  ODOT will be providing $2,243,250 in 
funding and the City will be responsible for a 10.27% match of $256,750.  
Preliminary engineering is anticipated to start this summer, with construction in 
early 2018.  The City will need to execute a Local Agency Agreement to begin 
preliminary engineering.  The City Attorney has reviewed the agreement and 
approved as to form.  The City’s contribution will be funded from the ODOT 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds. 
 
The City has applied for additional funding to complete pedestrian 
improvements adjacent to this project through ODOT’s Enhance Proposal 
process.  If funded, these additional improvements will be included in the 2018-
2021 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).  This next phase of 
the project, if funded, would complete a continuous pedestrian route around the 
peninsula from 45th Street near the Alderbrook neighborhood to 7th Street past 
the Old Young’s Bay Bridge.  It is recommended that Council approve the Local 
Agency Agreement with ODOT for the OR202 Sidewalk Project.  
 

Item 5(e): 23rd Street Closure – Local Agency Agreement (Public Works) 
 

In an effort to expand parking and improve pedestrian and vehicular mobility 
between 23rd and 27th Street, Columbia Memorial Hospital (CMH) will be 
constructing a new parking lot adjacent to 23rd Street and Franklin Avenue.  
They also plan to make improvements along US30 (Marine Drive) and Franklin 



Page 3 of 6 

Avenue. Improvements include closing access to vacated 23rd Street and 
improving the intersection of Franklin Avenue and Marine Drive.  The City and 
CMH worked with ODOT to attain $149,000 in funding for the proposed 
improvements along the State highway.  This funding does not require a 
matching contribution, but will require CMH to pay for any costs that exceed the 
funded amount.  A Cooperative Agreement between the City, ODOT and CMH 
will be presented to Council.  The agreement would formally accept closure of 
the 23rd Street access location; accept the new Franklin Avenue intersection 
improvements and right-of-way dedication; and accept maintenance 
responsibility for improvements not maintained by adjacent property owners, 
CMH or ODOT.  There is no immediate direct financial impact to the City as a 
result of this agreement.  It is recommended that Council approve the 
Cooperative Agreement with ODOT for the 23rd Street Closure Project.  

 
Item 5(f): Astoria Senior Center Renovation – Construction Contract Amendment No. 

4 (Public Works) 
 

In July of 2015 the City Council approved a contract with Skyward Construction, 
Inc. for the Astoria Senior Center Renovation Project in the amount of 
$1,455,157.00.  A construction contingency of approximately 10% of the 
construction contract was set aside outside of the construction contract for any 
unforeseen circumstances that may arise during the project.  As is with any 
remodeling project of the building circa 1947 it is anticipated unforeseen items 
will emerge during the renovation process.  Prior to this current contract 
amendment No. 4, the previously approved contract amendment Nos. 1, 2 and 
3 were in the amount of $31,399.38. Contract amendment No. 4 is related to 
the need to (1) perform more extensive preparation to the exterior building 
perimeter walls on the North and West elevations to provide a sound substrate 
for application of the final paint coatings at a cost of $2,842.00; (2) install the 
Walk-In Freezer purchased by the organization who will operate the kitchen.  
The cost of $3,297.71 to install this unit is paid by the kitchen operator and not 
by the use of grant funds.  To date Contract Amendment Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 
would utilize $34,241.38 of the $145.515.70 of the contingency.  It is 
recommended that the City Council approve the Contract Amendment No. 4 in 
the amount of $6,139.71 which will amend the construction contract for the 
Astoria Senior Center Renovation Project with Skyward Construction, Inc., to 
the total amount of $1,492,696.09 

 
Item 5(g): Loan Agreement R17794 Amendment (Finance) 
 

Funding was required to solicit design services for the City’s Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) upon issuance of a National Pollution Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Permit in 2007.  Council adopted Resolution No. 
11-23 authorizing a DEQ CWSRF loan in the amount of $90,000 for design of 
the WWTP Effluent Treatment Upgrades project. Loan Agreement No. R11794 
is payable in semi-annual payments of $10,262 through June 1, 2017.  DEQ 
contacted staff regarding ability to forgive $27,000 of principal borrowing for 
Loan R11794.  The remaining balance of the loan balance is $3,467.  The 
FY2015-16 budget contains sufficient funding to cover the payoff of the balance 



Page 4 of 6 

and interest of $38 as of January 22, 2016.  It is recommended that Council 
provide approval of Loan Agreement No. R11794 Amendment to forgive 
$27,000 and to pay the remaining balance including interest owed through 
January 22, 2016 in the amount of $3,505.   

 
Item 5(h): 16th Street CSO Separation Project – Pay Adjustment No. 5 (Public Works) 
 

The 16th Street Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Separation project was 
awarded to Emery & Sons Construction Group (Emery) for the bid amount of 
$5,483,180. Staff recommended and incorporated a standard 10% contingency 
to the budget for this project. The construction contingency of 10% is $549,000.  
Pay adjustment No. 5 for $59,301.41 includes a variety of changes that are 
itemized below:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The largest line item in this change order is for remobilization and other 
expenses associated with deferring the work on 16th Street until summer 2016 
to avoid conflicts with Clatsop Community College (CCC) Patriot Hall 
Redevelopment Project. An IGA between the City and CCC was approved at 
the September 21, 2015 Council meeting.  Funds are available for this pay 
adjustment through IFA funding and Clatsop Community College 
reimbursement.  The construction of the entire project except for the work on 
16th Street was substantially complete on November 4, 2015. Emery has a list 
of minor punch list items for the completed portion of work that will be finished 
when they return to construct the work on 16th Street, which is scheduled to 
begin in June.  It is recommended that the City Council authorize Pay 
Adjustment No. 5 for the 16th Street CSO Separation project in the amount of 
$59,301.41.  

 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Item 7(a): Ordinance Readopting Oregon Revised Statutes (Code Section 1.047) (2nd 

reading and adoption) (City Attorney) 
 

This ordinance received its first reading at the January 4, 2016 Council meeting.  
The 2015 legislation passed by the Oregon Legislature, for the most part, 
became effective on January 1, 2016.  Many of our City ordinances refer to or 
incorporate State statutes.  Every year, the City routinely re-adopts all 
referenced ORS sections to pick up any changes made by the legislature.  This 
is done by a "global readoption", which was the technique recommended by the 
League of Oregon Cities.  The City is legally unable to prospectively adopt 

Item Description Cost 
1 Suspension of 16th Street work $52,430.84 
2 Archaeological standby time $2,754.04 
3 Fernco coupling substitution ($1,984.76) 
4 ADA ramps modifications $6,101.29 
 TOTAL $59,301.41 



Page 5 of 6 

Oregon legislative changes, that is, we cannot adopt a State statute "as it now 
exists and is from time to time amended."  The proposed ordinance has been 
reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.  It is recommended that Council 
conduct the second reading and adopt the proposed ordinance. 

 
Item 6(b): Public Hearings – Appeals by Ron Zilli (Community Development) 

(1) AP15-01 – New Construction Permit NC15-03 for Verizon Wireless  
(2) AP15-02 – Variance V15-03 for Verizon Wireless  
(3) AP15-03 – Wireless Communications Facility Permit WCF15-03 for 

Verizon Wireless 
 

On August 3, 2015, Verizon Wireless LLC applied for a New Construction 
permit (NC15-03) to the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) to construct a 
new wireless communication facility at 1580 Shively Park Road within Shively 
Park.  On September 15, 2015, the HLC held a public hearing and approved the 
request with conditions.  A Notice of Appeal on the HLC decision was submitted 
by Ron Zilli on September 30, 2015.  On August 3, 2015, Verizon Wireless LLC 
applied for a Variance permit (V15-03) to the Astoria Planning Commission 
(APC) to construct a new wireless communication facility at 1580 Shively Park 
Road within Shively Park with a height of 150’ which exceeds the 45’ maximum 
height.  On September 16, 2015, the APC held a public hearing and approved 
the request with conditions.  A Notice of Appeal on the HLC decision was 
submitted by Ron Zilli on September 30, 2015.  On August 3, 2015, Verizon 
Wireless LLC applied for a Wireless Communications Facility permit (WCF15-
03) to the Astoria Planning Commission (APC) to construct a new wireless 
communication facility at 1580 Shively Park Road within Shively Park.  On 
September 16, 2015, the APC held a public hearing and approved the request 
with conditions.  A Notice of Appeal on the HLC decision was submitted by Ron 
Zilli on September 30, 2015. 

 
The Notice of Appeal, which details the appellant’s concerns, can be found on 
the attached Record on each of the permits.  A complete record of each of the 
requests has been compiled.  A public hearing on the Appeal was advertised 
and scheduled for the November 16, 2015 City Council meeting.  At the 
November 16, 2015 meeting, the Council continued the public hearing to 
December 7, 2015 at the request of Verizon.  At its December 7, 2015 meeting, 
the Council continued the public hearing to the January 4, 2016 meeting due to 
the holidays to allow for greater public participation in the hearing.  At its 
December 17, 2015 meeting, the City Council continued the public hearing to 
the January 19, 2016 meeting at the request of Verizon.   

 
The appellant asserts that the NC15-01, V15-02, and WCF15-03 permits for the 
proposed 150’ tall, metal wireless communications facility tower should be 
denied.  The specific issues for denial on each of the permits appealed by Mr. 
Zilli are summarized on an attachment to this memo.  Staff and the attorney for 
the applicant, Verizon Communications, have submitted additional Findings of 
Fact to address the issues raised by the appellant.  Verizon has also submitted 
revised photo simulations and documents addressing the concerns raised in the 
appeals.  It is recommended that Council do site visits in addition to reviewing 



Page 6 of 6 

the photo simulations.  If a site visit is performed, you should declare an ex 
parte contact and describe what you saw.  If the Council supports the HLC and 
APC decisions with the conditions, the Council should adopt the Findings of 
Fact as approved by the HLC and APC, and attached supplemental Findings of 
Fact.  Should the Council determine that the WCF tower does not meet the 
criteria for approval, staff will have supplemental Findings of Fact prepared for 
Council consideration and adoption at a future meeting.   
 
Due to the fact that the three appeals are related to the same facility and site, it 
is recommended that Council hold a combined public hearing on the three 
appeals; however, the Council decision on each appeal will need to be done 
with separate motions.  It is recommended City Council hold the public hearing 
on the appeals and consider whether to uphold or reverse the Historic 
Landmarks Commission decision and the Planning Commission decisions to 
approve the Requests with conditions.  If the Council upholds the decisions, the 
Council needs to adopt the HLC and/or APC Findings of Fact and Supplemental 
Findings of Fact.  If the Council reverses the decision, staff will prepare revised 
Findings of Fact for consideration at the February 1, 2016 meeting. 

 



  

Page 1 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

CITY OF ASTORIA      CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS  
City Council Chambers 
December 21, 2015 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm. 
 
Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Herzig, Warr, Price, Mayor LaMear 
 
Councilors Excused: None  
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Police Chief Johnston, Community Development Director Cronin, Planner 
Ferber, Special Projects Planner Johnson, Parks and Recreation Director Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire 
Chief Ames, Library Director Tucker, Public Works Director Cook, and City Attorney Henningsgaard. The 
meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.  
 
Mayor LaMear noted that at 6:00 pm, City Council held a reception for the 145 volunteer members in the City 
and acknowledged the commissioners in the audience.  
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 

Item 3(a): Councilor Nemlowill reported that she was thankful to the Mayor, Councilors, staff, and 
board and commission volunteers for a great year. Prior to the meeting, she asked some of the department 
heads to tell her their greatest accomplishment in 2015. City Manager Estes had said getting fully staffed was no 
small feat. The Parks and Recreation Department has made a 180 degree turn on deferred maintenance. Two 
sections of the Riverfront Vision Plan were implemented. The Fire Department has a new fire engine and will 
receive a new ladder truck soon. The Police Department established a strong and positive presence in the 
community. The CSO project has progressed and the City is exploring sites for a new library. Astoria is also 
earning carbon credits for its trees. All of this work has been a team effort and she thanked everyone involved. 
 

Item 3(b): Councilor Herzig reported that as he reads through the minutes of each board and 
commission, he has noticed the time and thought put into their decisions. He thanked the volunteers for giving 
up their time and committing to their responsibilities. The library had a successful after hours program on Friday, 
December 18. The concert hall held their traditional holiday concert, which was a great use of public space. The 
Astoria Warming Center has been open for 20 nights since it first opened on November 19. So far this winter, 
the center has received 45 men and 11 women. Some of the guests have been veterans, pregnant women, 
mentally ill, and women escaping domestic violence. He believed the center would be open through Christmas 
Day because the weather is so severe. The warming center is an incredible community project and he thanked 
the volunteers and donors for their support. There are no other warming shelters in Clatsop County and he was 
glad to be part of it. 
 

Item 3(c): Councilor Price reported she was thankful to her fellow Councilors. It has been great to get 
to know and work with each one. She enjoyed the year and was looking forward to the next three years. City 
Council has laid a lot of good ground work in 2015 and she expected something spectacular in 2016.  

 
Item 3(d): Councilor Warr had no reports. 
 
Item 3(e): Mayor LaMear reported that she participated in the Fire Department’s Christmas Food 

Parade. A lot of food was collected and she enjoyed the event. The City held a reception for the students from 
Waldorf, Germany. It was wonderful to meet all of the students. She read a letter she wrote in support of the 
Astoria Armory’s Oregon Community Foundation grant application. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
City Manager Estes requested the addition of the following items: 
• Item 7(c): Astoria Senior Center Lease Agreement 
• Item 7(d): Division of State Lands Extension to the Proposed Rule Change Comment Period 
• Item 7(e): Uppertown Slide Area Development Proposal 
 



  

Page 2 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

The agenda was approved with changes. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

Item 5(a): Astoria-Megler Bridge 50th Anniversary Celebration – Mac Burns 
 
Mac Burns, Executive Director of the Clatsop County Historical Society, will brief the City Council regarding the 
plans for the Astoria-Megler Bridge 50th Anniversary Celebration. As plans are developing, it is important to have 
the project endorsed by the City. A budget for the celebration is included and it has been requested that $9,500 
be provided. It would be appropriate to use Promote Astoria Funds for this event. 
 
Mac Burns, 960 Franklin Avenue, Astoria, gave a presentation on plans for the Astoria-Megler Bridge 50th 
Anniversary Celebration, which was included in the agenda packet. The presentation included the history of the 
bridge, the bridge’s importance to Astoria, a budget for the celebration, and a request for $9,500 from the 
Promote Astoria Fund for the celebration event. 
 
Councilor Warr believed Council should fully support the request and asked if the City had enough money. City 
Manager Estes confirmed the Promote Astoria Fund could accommodate the request. 
 
Councilor Herzig said he appreciated the Historical Society taking responsibility for the event, but he was unsure 
who owned the bridge. Therefore, he was unsure who should be leading the celebration. Several, years ago, the 
City gave the Historical Society $10,000 for the Ghadar event, but never received a full financial report. He asked 
if the Historical Society would provide a full financial report on how the $9,500 was spent on the event. 
 
Mr. Burns replied, of course. He believed he had sent a financial report on the Ghadar event to John Snyder, 
who worked in the City’s Finance Department at the time. He apologized that City Council never received a copy 
of the report. 
 
Bill Johnson said Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) is very grateful to the Historical Society and the 
City for the supporting the event. ODOT would have held some commemoration of the 50th anniversary of the 
bridge, but it would not have been as elaborate as what the Historical Society has proposed. The event will be a 
community event as much as it is an ODOT event. ODOT will be assisting and coordinating to make the event 
happen. The bridge is owned collectively by the State of Oregon and the State of Washington. Maintenance 
costs exceed the original construction costs. He confirmed that a ten-year restoration project on the bridge was 
currently ongoing. Restoration costs will be between $80 million and $100 million, which is about as much as the 
bridge cost to build in 1964.   
 
Councilor Herzig said Sara Meyer had shown a slideshow on the construction of the bridge at the Senior Center. 
He asked if any other entities were helping fund the event. 
 
Mr. Burns said he only presented a budget for the funds being requested of Astoria. He believed groups like the 
Chamber of Commerce, ODOT, and Regatta would contribute. The ODOT historian will give a presentation. The 
Chamber has embraced this event as the theme for their annual meeting in January and the event will be the 
centerpiece of the Regatta’s theme for the year. 
 
Councilor Price said she wanted the City to limit disbursements from the Promote Astoria Fund to the Budget 
Committee’s regular process. However, this event is a good example of a good exception. She agreed other 
entities would contribute to the event after the first of the year. If the event works out, she would like a 
celebration of the end of ferry service during celebration of the opening of the bridge. She is part of a group that 
is interested in bringing back one of the original ferries. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she appreciated that Mr. Burns and the Historical Society took on this project. She did 
not believe the City’s investment in this event would be large compared to the benefits it would provide. This is a 
very appropriate use of Promote Astoria Funds. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Price, to approve the request by 
the Clatsop County Historical Society for $9,500 of Promote Astoria Funds for the Astoria-Megler Bridge 50th 



  

Page 3 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

Anniversary Celebration. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
City Manager Estes added that Astoria’s Sister City Committee planned to host guests from Waldorf during the 
event. 
 

Item 5(b): Parks Master Plan Progress and Community Feedback – Ian Sisson 
 
In May of 2015, the Astoria City Council adopted "develop a city parks master plan" as a goal for the 2015-16 
Fiscal Year budget. The Parks and Recreation Department is in the process of preparing a Comprehensive 
Master Plan, with the assistance of RARE AmeriCorps participant Ian Sisson. The plan will establish short and 
long-term priorities for the Parks and Recreation Department’s parks, facilities, operations, and program 
offerings. Ian will update the Council on the first phase of the project, community engagement and information 
collection, which will continue through January 2016. The next phase of the project will analyze the information 
collected, assess the Parks and Recreation Department’s level of service, and develop an initial set of 
recommendations for the Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan. 
 
Ian Sisson, 1263 Commercial, Astoria, gave an update on the first phase of the master planning process for the 
Parks Master Plan, noting staff has hosted several public engagement activities, including an online survey that 
is still ongoing. Initial recommendations are being identified and will be refined in the spring. The survey is on the 
City’s website and 473 responses have been collected so far. The survey will remain open through January 1, 
2016, with a $50 punch pass being raffled off each day to participants who provide a valid email address. He 
presented the survey responses collected to date as follows: 

• Most Visited Parks – The Column, Tapiola, Fred Lindstrom, Shively, and Young’s River 
• Least Visited Parks – The Customs House, Birch Field, the Doughboy Monument, Tidal Rock, and 

People’s Park 
• Priorities if you were Parks Director – Maintenance, trails and natural areas, playgrounds, fitness 

facilities and programs, and youth programs 
• Most Utilized Programs and Services – Swimming lessons, memberships and punch passes, youth 

sports leagues, runs and walks, and special events 
• Beers to Your Health was a community engagement event to discuss the history and future planning of six 

parks. The tour of parks and park facilities highlighted the vastness of the park system operated and 
maintained with limited staff. Most of the 23 attendees were Citizen Advisory Committee and Park Board 
members, but the tour was open to the public. He showed a video that was recorded during the tour. Other 
community outreach events included a survey at Monster Bash and two community input sessions. 
Collectively, about 700 people have participated in the community outreach events to date. The next 
community outreach effort will be meeting with focus groups that can provide targeted feedback. Those 
meetings will be scheduled for January. More public events will be held late winter and early spring, where 
initial recommendations will be announced so they can be refined. This initial phase of the planning process 
has resulted in an inventory and existing conditions report, currently still a rough draft. Each park, trail, and 
facility has been identified on a fact sheet. The report will be refined and included in the final master plan 
document. The next phase, the development phase, will result in a level of service analysis and a draft of 
initial recommendations. The next Citizens Advisory Committee meeting will be on January 28 at 8:00 am at 
the Astoria Recreation Center. He would give City Council another update in February. 

 
Mayor LaMear thanked Mr. Sisson for all of his work, adding the fact sheets for each trail and facility provide 
very useful information. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she has been proud of this process, which has included a lot of community outreach. 
She thanked Mr. Sisson and Director Cosby. The City is getting a lot for the $30,000 spent on this process. A 
consultant would have cost a lot more and it was great to work with an AmeriCorps RARE volunteer. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 

6(a) City Council Minutes of 11/16/15 
6(b) Boards and Commission Minutes 

(1) Library Board Meeting of 4/15/14 



  

Page 4 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

6(c) Request for Proposals (RFP) for Audit Services (Finance) 
6(d) Authorization to Award Contract for Astoria Aquatic Center Sand Filter Media Replacement and 

Lateral Repair (Parks) 
6(e) 2015 Street End Bridge Repair Project – Construction Contract Award (Public Works) 
6(f) Heritage Square EPA Grant – AMEC Contract Amendment (Public Works) 
6(g) Authorization to Enter into a Lease Agreement with the Astoria School District (Parks) 

 
Councilor Herzig and Mayor LaMear requested Items 6(a), (d), (e), and (g) be removed for further discussion. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to approve Items 6 (b), 
(c), and (f) of the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, 
Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(a): City Council Minutes of 11/16/15 
 
Councilor Herzig noted that traffic consultant Chris Maciejewski’s name had been misspelled throughout the 
minutes. He suggested the transcription company be given the names of consultants and other speakers. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Herzig, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to approve City 
Council Minutes 11/16/15 as amended. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, 
Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(d): Authorization to Award Contract for Astoria Aquatic Center Sand Filter Media 
Replacement and Lateral Repair (Parks) 

 
Mayor LaMear said the memorandum did not mention how long the pool would be closed during this repair work. 
Director Cosby explained that each filter would take about two or three hours. All of the work would be done 
within one day, during which time each of the four pools would be closed for two or three hours. The kiddy pool 
and hot tub would be done first and the lap pool and recreation pool would be done in the middle of the day when 
the Aquatic Center is slower. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Herzig, to award a contract 
for the Astoria Aquatic Center sand filter media replacement and lateral repair. Motion carried unanimously. 
Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(e): 2015 Street End Bridge Repair Project – Construction Contract Award (Public Works) 
 
Mayor LaMear believed it was important for citizens to be aware of the $8.2 million ODOT grant Astoria has 
received for this project. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to award a 
construction contract for the 2015 Street End Bridge Repair Project. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: 
Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(g): Authorization to Enter into a Lease Agreement with the Astoria Senior Center (Parks) 
 
City Manager Estes noted a typographical error in the synopsis memorandum. The lease is between the Senior 
Center, operated by the Parks and Recreation Department and the Astoria School District for the operation of 
Port of Play and Li’l Sprouts at Gray School, so the memorandum should have stated “Astoria School District”. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked why the rent was less in 2015 than it was in 2014. Director Cosby said originally the rent 
was going to increase by several thousand dollars in 2015. However, continued discussions with the school 
district revealed the Parks Department’s limited resources and the facility’s benefit to the community. Therefore, 
the school district was willing to reduce the rate. 
 
Mayor LaMear commented that does not happen very often. 
 



  

Page 5 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

Councilor Herzig stated City Council has been told the lease with the school district expired in June 2014. 
Adopting a payment for the 2015 calendar year will leave a six-month gap. He wanted to know what happened 
between June 2014 and now. City Manager Estes explained that the school district bills the City annually for the 
lease payments. The bill for Gray School was received right after the end of fiscal year 2014-2015. At this time, 
the school district discovered the lease had expired, so the Parks and school district staffs began renegotiating 
the lease. As a result, two lease payments will be made this fiscal year, one for 2015 and one for 2016. 
 
Councilor Herzig clarified he was asking about the period between June 2014 when the lease expired and the 
end of 2014. He asked how the payment was made during this time. City Manager Estes said the last payment 
to the school district was made in June 2014. The following year, the bill was sent later, in July, when the school 
district realized the lease had not been approved. Therefore, the lease needs to be readopted and the payment 
for 2015 authorized. 
 
Councilor Herzig understood the City was being asked to pay by the calendar year, but negotiates with the 
school district by the fiscal year. The lease expired in June 2014 and Council is now considering the calendar 
year for 2015, which leaves half of 2014 unaccounted for. City Manager Estes stated the City is billed one time 
each year. The payment should be made one time each fiscal year. The school district usually bills the City in 
June each year, but for fiscal year 2014-2015, the City was billed in July. When the City was billed in July, the 
school district discovered the lease had expired. The school district has not received their payment yet because 
Council must approve a new lease first. Once the lease is approved, staff can make the payment for the bill that 
should have been sent in June. In the future, the Parks Department will make sure the school district submits the 
bill before the end of each fiscal year. The repercussions of this situation will result in two lease payments in this 
fiscal year. 
 
Councilor Herzig explained he wanted to know if the City was leasing the facility by the fiscal year or the calendar 
year. There are still six months the City cannot account for. He thanked Director Cosby for negotiating the lower 
rent for the next year. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Herzig, seconded by Councilor Price, to authorize the lease 
agreement with the Astoria School District. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, 
Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Item 7(a): Resolution Adopting Public Works Department Engineering Design Standards (Public 
Works)  

 
The Public Works Department, with assistance from the firm Plangineering, recently finalized the Engineering 
Design Standards. The intent of the document is to provide a consistent approach for design professionals to 
use when designing and implementing public infrastructure improvements or related facilities. Completion and 
adoption of these standards is anticipated to increase efficiency, reduce staff time associated with development 
review, and reduce the overall coordination efforts between design consultants and staff. Assistant City Engineer 
Nathan Crater will provide Council with a brief presentation and will answer any questions that are raised. It is 
recommended that Council approve the resolution adopting the Public Works Department Engineering Design 
Standards, and designate authority for interpretation or updates to the City Engineer. 
 
Assistant City Engineer Nathan Crater presented an overview of the Public Works Department Engineering 
Design Standards, which were included in the agenda packet. He briefly discussed the intent of the standards, 
explained how the standards were developed, and noted the benefits of adopting the standards. 
 
Councilor Price asked why City Council needed to adopt the design standards. City Manager Estes explained 
that adopting the standards as a resolution allows the City to enforce the standards. Staff cannot implement new 
laws or policies. Engineer Crater added that adopting these standards through a resolution is a common method 
of formalizing the document, which is similar to a comprehensive plan or development code. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said making development in the city more efficient seems like a good goal. Staff’s 
recommendation and the credibility of the process for creating the standards gave her the confidence to approve 
the standards. 



  

Page 6 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Warr to approve the resolution 
adopting the Public Works Department Engineering Design Standards, and designate authority for interpretation 
or updates to the City Engineer. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, 
and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 7(b): Consideration of Continuance of Appeals AP15-01, AP15-02, AP15-03 by Ron Zilli of 
the Verizon Permits WCF15-03, V15-03, NC15-03 (Community Development)  

 
Ron Zilli filed appeals on the Planning Commission and Historic Landmarks Commission permits concerning 
construction of a wireless communication facility tower in Shively Park. A public hearing was scheduled for 
December 7, 2015. At that meeting, the City Council continued the hearings to the January 4, 2016 City Council 
meeting at the request of Verizon due to the holidays. Verizon hired a firm to complete new photographic 
simulations. Due to the holidays and the time involved in preparing the simulations, Verizon was unable to 
provide the documents to staff in time for the January 4 City Council meeting. Therefore, Verizon has requested 
that the public hearings on the three appeals be continued to the January 19 City Council meeting. Both Verizon 
and Mr. Zilli have requested that the City Council consider the request for a continuance at their December 21 
meeting rather than wait until the night of the hearing to make a decision. It would be in order for the Council to 
consider the request for a continuance and, if a continuance is granted, announce the date and time of the new 
hearing date. 
 
City Manager Estes noted that a Verizon representative and Mr. Zilli wanted to make a statement to City Council. 
 
Ron Zilli stated he preferred to speak after Verizon because Verizon’s comments would help him understand the 
nature of their request. 
 
Mike Connors, 520 SW Indian Hill Street, Portland, said this was Verizon’s second request for a continuance. 
The first request was made because City staff asked for additional information to be submitted into the public 
record in response to a meeting they had with the Appellant. Verizon was not prepared to do the work in time for 
the hearing, so they requested a continuance to January 4, 2016. Verizon had hired a new company to prepare 
the photo simulations requested by staff. This company uses a much more sophisticated process that includes 
3-D modeling and a balloon test. The balloon will be raised to the height of the proposed tower to create the 
simulation. On Verizon’s first attempt to conduct a balloon test, windy conditions led the consultant to delay the 
test. Verizon could have all of the requested information ready by January 4. However, staff wants the 
opportunity to review the information prior to the hearing so they can prepare a staff report and comments. 
Verizon is not in a position to provide the new information by staff’s due date. Therefore, Verizon is asking for a 
continuance, which is in the best interest of all parties. A continuance will allow Verizon to finalize their 
information and give staff and Mr. Zilli the opportunity to review it in advance of the hearing.  
 
Councilor Herzig confirmed Mr. Zilli would have the opportunity to review the information before January 19. 
 
Ron Zilli, 1444 16th Street, Astoria, asked City Council to consider the citizen’s perspective of the process. When 
the hearings for the permits were advertised, citizens only had a few short weeks to read the staff report, 
understand the project, and make comments to the Planning Commission and Historic Landmarks Commission. 
When the Applicant submitted their application to the City for their project, it was their responsibility to submit a 
complete and accurate assessment of their work and prepared plans. After the hearings, he only had 15 days to 
file an appeal, which required him to look through the Development Code to determine Findings of Fact. January 
4 is approximately three months from the date he filed the appeals. He asked City Council to consider that the 
Applicant has been given much more time to prepare for a hearing than he was given to understand and appeal 
the project. He wanted the hearing to be conducted on January 4. The City has 120 days to make a decision on 
an application, which began on August 4 when the application was submitted. It is important to be aware of 
where the process is within that timeline and what the Applicant’s intentions are. The time taken by the Applicant 
has worked against the clock. If the City does not take action within 120 days, the application is automatically 
approved. 
 
Planner Johnson confirmed that State law requires the City to make a decision on all applications within 120 
days. However, Oregon Revised Statutes allows extensions to the 120-day time limit. No City Council or 
government can force an extension, but the Applicant has the right to request an extension. The Applicant can 



  

Page 7 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

grant the City an extension of up to 245 days beyond the original 120, which totals one full year. She presented a 
signed application from Verizon extending the time limit for all three applications to March 8, 2016. Verizon 
wanted to extend the time beyond January in case City Council wanted additional time to consider the request. 
She confirmed the original 120 day time period expired in December. A first extension was granted to January 
20 and the second extension expired on March 8. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill asked if Mr. Zilli had any comments in response to Mr. Connors or Planner Johnson.  
 
Mr. Zilli said the information about the extension was important because there is the potential for an additional 
process after the appeals hearings. The extension allows time for subsequent processes if they are necessary. 
 
Mayor LaMear confirmed there were no public comments. 
 
Councilor Price asked what other items would be on the January 19th agenda. City Manager Estes said the only 
item that had been scheduled for the January 19th meeting so far was a work session on Heritage Square. 
 
Councilor Herzig understood Chief Johnston and Director Cosby have devoted a lot of time to these hearings. If 
staff wants more time to review the additional information submitted by Verizon, City Council should give them 
the time. It is frustrating to continue putting off a decision, but staff has invested a lot to the entire project. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Herzig, seconded by Councilor Warr to continue Appeals 
AP15-01, AP15-02, AP15-03 by Ron Zilli to the January 19, 2016 City Council meeting. Motion carried 
unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 7(c): Astoria Senior Center Lease Agreement (Parks)  (Added Item) 
 
City Manager Estes said the renovation of the Senior Center would be complete shortly after the New Year. 
Director Cosby has been working with Senior Center to establish a 5-year lease. The final lease agreement has 
been submitted to City Council for review. Staff had intended to submit the lease agreement with the agenda 
packet. However, staff needed to more time to make sure the lease satisfied the requirements of the Community 
Development Block Grant that funded the renovation. The State of Oregon’s comments were just received on 
Friday, December 18th. The Senior Center would like the lease approved before taking possession in January. 
Staff recommends approval of the lease agreement with the Astoria Senior Center. 
 
Councilor Herzig said Larry Miller has done a great job of keeping the Senior Center motivated throughout this 
project. The Senior Center hosted a Christmas dinner at the American Legion and it has been great to see the 
interest, support, and enthusiasm continue for so long. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she wished the information had been included in the agenda packet so she could 
review the lease. She asked why the rent decreased each year from $5,000 in 2016 to $1,000 five years later. 
City Manager Estes explained that the renovation was completed with the intent to transfer ownership of the 
Senior Center facility from the City of Astoria to the Senior Center at some point. When the grant was secured, 
staff and the Senior Center discussed structuring the lease to reduce the amount of City financial support over 
time. This structure will help the Senior Center become self-sufficient over the long term. In addition to paying 
rent that decreases by $1,000 each year, the City will pay water expenses only for the first two years of the 
lease. Director Cosby added that the Parks and Recreation Department currently pays for electric, water, sewer, 
natural gas, garbage collection, maintenance and repair costs. With this lease, the City will no longer provide 
financial support, except two years of water and sewer payments. City Manager Estes noted that the City had 
been spending more than $5,000 each year on the Senior Center, so this lease will result in an immediate 
reduction of expenses. 
 
Councilor Herzig explained that the lease is for five years because the grant funds five years of operating 
expenses. At the end of the five-year period, the grant funding will cease and the City and Senior Center will 
decide if the Senior Center is ready to take ownership of the facility. The grant has strict requirements for what 
the Senior Center must offer the community.  
 



  

Page 8 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Warr to approve the lease 
agreement with the Astoria Senior Center. Motion carried 4 to 0 to 1. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Herzig, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. Abstentions: Councilor Nemlowill 
 

Item 7(d): Division of State Lands Extension to the Proposed Rule Change Comment Period 
(City Council) (Added Item)  

 
City Manager Estes said the Division of State Lands (DSL) held a hearing the previous week at the Judge 
Boyington Building regarding amendments to land lease policies. The DSL leases submerged properties and 
properties that were submerged at one time. Waterfront property owners and citizens became aware of the 
hearing the day it was scheduled. Councilor Price had attended a portion of the meeting that included a 
discussion indicating the public wanted a longer comment period, which is scheduled to end on December 31, 
2015. Councilor Price has requested the City send a letter to the DSL requesting a 60-day extension to the 
comment period. He believed the State was willing to grant an extension, but has not yet made a decision. 
 
Councilor Price believed the hearings officer could have granted an extension at the hearing, but he was looking 
for public comment. She understood that everyone at the meeting had heard about the hearing earlier that day 
after reading a Facebook post by Floyd Holcomb. Mr. Holcomb was the only local landowner who received a 
notice about the hearing. More time to review basic administrative rules would be good. 
 
Councilor Warr asked if the DSL was considering taking ownership of the lands that were submerged at one 
time. 
 
Councilor Price said she did not believe so. She understood the intent was to clean up their process 
administratively. The only previously submerged lands affected are lands considered historically submerged, 
which are lands that were submerged prior to May 1963. The proposed changes were not quite clear to her 
because she does not own land. However, all of the landowners in attendance wanted more time to review the 
changes. This formal request for an extension would do landowners a favor. 
 
Councilor Warr said several years ago, the DSL claimed ownership of all historically submerged lands, which 
would include all of Downtown Astoria. He believed this issue had been settled long ago. City Manager Estes 
explained that the DSL’s Astoria Act provides a different set of rules for Astoria. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Price to request an extension to 
the Division of State Lands Proposed Rule Comment Period. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors 
Price, Warr, Herzig, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 7(e):  Uppertown Slide Area Development Proposal (Public Works) (Added Item)  
 
City Manager Estes explained that staff is concerned about possible development of an area to the south of 
Safeway. 
 
Engineer Crater said a developer has contacted the City about the property southwest of Safeway, which was 
previously associated with the Uppertown slide. City Codes and Ordinances provide guidance on the 
development of geologically challenged areas. However, staff believes the rules in place may not adequately 
address the development of a site directly associated with a recent slide. Staff has been considering more 
comprehensive methods of protecting the city and the public when development is proposed. 
 
City Manager Estes noted the property is currently owned by Clatsop Community Action (CCA) and he has 
discussed potential sale of the property with Elaine Bruce. The CCA is being charged property tax by the County 
even though they are a non-profit, which is a financial burden to the organization. He told Ms. Bruce the City 
could work with CCA to address the tax issue and consider other ownership options. 
 
City Attorney Henningsgaard said the developer has backed away from plans that previously seemed urgent. 
Therefore, the issue is no longer a problem. However, his review of the Code demonstrated that the City has 
very few resources to protect the city when a developer wants to build on property that staff believes is 
dangerous. Protective devices could include bonding requirements and requiring developers to reimburse the 



  

Page 9 of 9  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  December 21, 2015 

City for desiccation processes in or near identified slide areas. This particular incident spurred thoughts that the 
City should consider a landslide overlay zone or implementation of safeguards. 
 
Councilor Herzig understood that if the land was sold to the developer now, the City has very few legal means of 
restricting development on a dangerous site. City Attorney Henningsgaard added that if the developer provided a 
geotechnical report that recommended development, the City could not prevent it even if staff and City 
Engineers disagreed with the report. It is important to address this issue. He confirmed for Councilor Herzig that 
staff did not want to block development, just protect citizens when development occurs. 
 
City Manager Estes explained that staff would continue to work with CCA and the potential buyer of their 
property. The potential buyer does not want to get into a complicated situation with the City. However, CCA 
needs to resolve the tax issue on the property. Staff will also consider ways to incorporate safeguards in the 
development of slide prone areas. 
 
City Attorney Henningsgaard noted this item was added to the agenda because of the possibility that staff would 
need to request a moratorium requiring immediate action by the City. However, the parties involved have backed 
off. Staff will proceed with developing recommendations for some helpful devices if Council believes it is a good 
idea to do so. 
 
Mayor LaMear believed safeguards were necessary. She thanked staff for their work and said it was important to 
satisfy CCA. 
 
Councilor Herzig said when the slide area was disrupted, houses slid as well. Development of this property 
would be extremely dangerous. 
 
NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
There was none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:28 pm to convene the Astoria Development 
Commission meeting. 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Finance Director City Manager  













 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 

January 7, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  LIBRARY DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT 
 
The following are summaries of Library Department projects and activities for October through December 2015. 
 
LIBRARY BUILDING PROJECT 
Library staff continues to work with the Community Development Department to investigate locating the Astoria 
Public Library as a part of a mixed use residential development within Heritage Square, to facilitate 
redevelopment  of this space.  Library staff participated in the October 21 event at the Lovell Room of the Fort 
George and in Heritage committee meetings on October 8, November 5 and November 19. 
 
LIGHTING 
Public Works employees continued installing more efficient ballasts and lens covers. 
 
DOORS 
Immediately following the Haunted Library event on October 31, the 1oth street doors broke. Public Works 
was able to secure them for the evening and repair them the next day. 
 
ROOF 
Staff is working with McBride Architects to update a 2010 report and drawings of the library roof.  The update 
includes an analysis of repair versus rebuilding the roof.  The update is expected to be complete by February 
26, 2016. 
 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

• Anne Odom is continuing cross training in cataloging with Laura Meeker. 
• A majority of staff have received cross training in preschool and toddler program procedures, in 

order to assist when the children's services staff cannot deliver program. 
• Lindsay Johnson completed an American Library Association course titled "Creating a Welcoming 

Library Environment for and with Teens."  She is applying the principles learned to teen programs. 
• Lindsay Johnson and Ami Kreider attended the Astoria High School's annual Activity Fair.  They 

introduced upcoming programs and discussed ideas with students. 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
Highlights in the second quarter focus on adult, family and teen programs including Library After Hours, 
Haunted Library, and Teen programs.  Overall, 1,648 people participated in 53 programs sponsored by the 
Astoria Library in the second quarter. 
 

LIBRARY AFTER HOURS AND OTHER PROGRAMS FOR ADULTS 
A broad variety of programs have been offered and well attended.  Staff has noticed that different 
audiences assemble when the programs are varied, which extends the reach of the library into the 







 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 

 
January 10, 2015 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT STATUS REPORT 
 
The following are summaries of Parks and Recreation Department projects and 
activities between September and December 2015.  

AQUATIC CENTER 

Aquatic Center Season Overview 
The Aquatic Center reopened from the maintenance closure on September 28, 2015.  
Below are some highlights from this season: 

• On Monday, September 28th the Aquatic Center re-opened after completing the 
capital improvement projects of re-surfacing the Lap and Leisure Pools, replacing 
lighting with energy efficient LED lights, Installation of new shower systems, and 
preforming updates to the HVAC system.  

• Our Aquatic Risk Management Company, Ellis and Associates, performed an 
unannounced audit on October 27th. The Aquatic Center staff performed well and 
received the rating of “exceeds”.   

• From September - December the Aquatic Center adopted temporary reduced 
hours. The pools were closed from 1:00 PM to 3:30 PM on weekdays due to a 
shortage of certified lifeguards.  

• In October and November the Aquatic Center hosted two lifeguard courses.  A 
total of 16 students attended and became certified lifeguards. 7 of these 
participants were hired as lifeguards.  

• Two new swim instructors were hired this fall. Allowing the Aquatic Center to 
offer additional swim lessons. Swim Lessons are currently full with waiting lists.   

• In October and November we held an annual water safety swim lessons for the 
Naselle Rivers School District.  A total of 44 students that attending this six week 
course. 

• In November the Astoria High School Swim team began using the facility for 
practices and swim meets.  In December the team hosted the successful Andrew 
Nygaard Invitational Meet.   

 
  



 

ASTORIA RECREATION CENTER 

After School Program 
The after school program has continued at the ARC and the Warrenton Grade school 
this fall. In addition to the after school program, we have offered several “no school days 
camps” during fall no school days for both the Warrenton and Astoria school 
district.  The Warrenton grade school numbers have almost doubled since the beginning 
of the school year. Staff have planned and implemented several fun activities in the 
program including: 

• Craft projects 
• Science projects 
• Agriculture 
• Preparing snacks 
• Holiday projects 

 
Adult Volleyball  
The women’s volleyball program began in September and has been running smoothly 
with new program changes including roster/ ID checks and new referees.  Six women’s 
teams are participating in this league. Additionally, the drop in coed volleyball is being 
held at the Astoria Middle School every Wednesday evening.  Averages of 15 people 
are coming regularly to the open gym night. 
 
Youth Flag Football 
The flag football program expanded this year from a handful of participants in Astoria 
and Warrenton last year to four teams from Astoria, Warrenton and Seaside 
participating this year.  The program is geared towards 1st and 2nd graders but also 
allows 3rd graders to participate.   
 
Youth Basketball  
Big changes have been made to the program this year as all 5th and 6th graders (boys 
and girls) played in the fall with a new two referee per game structure.  3rd and 4th grade 
boys and girls began practicing in January with games in late January through the 
beginning of March. This change was made to increase the number of athletes 
participating in the program.  The number of teams increased dramatically due to this 
change, twelve more teams participated this year between the fall and winter leagues 
versus last year’s programs. 
 
Adult Basketball  
The 2015/ 2016 season began league play in November and continues with games 
through February.  The league has the same number of teams playing as last year. 
 
Fitness Classes 
The fall fitness classes held regular attendance due in part to less class offerings.  Early 
morning classes continued to be popular and staff has kept the same number of these 
classes going in to fall. Planning for winter/ New Year’s resolution attendance increases, 
staff have added new classes to the schedule for early morning and after work times. 
 

  



 

Other Classes 
Staff ran two sessions of beginner and intermediate gymnastics this fall.  The class 
proved to be very popular, the first session had five plus children in each class and our 
second session of gymnastics filled up.  Staff added a third class to our session 
beginning in January.   
 
Staff is also working with a new volunteer instructor to start a new Jiu Jitsu course as 
well as Self Defense classes in January.   
 
Monster Bash  
The Annual Monster Bash Halloween event was held for a second year at the 
Armory.  This location boosts attendance being so close to downtown.  Hundreds of 
young children and their families enjoyed carnival style games, treats, hotdogs and a 
costume contest. This event is especially successful due to the contribution of other 
community organizations such as the Rotary Club and numerous donations from area 
business. 
 
Gobbler Gallop Fun Run 
The annual Gobbler Gallop fun run was held on Thanksgiving morning, Nov. 26.  Staff 
saw a record number of attendances for this event with over 140 people in 
attendance.  The 5K race hosted a variety of participants ranging in age from 4 to 80 
years old. 
 
LIL’ SPROUTS ACADEMY/PORT OF PLAY: 
It has been a busy Fall at Lil’ Sprouts!  Many of our kiddos that were not here for the 
summer have since returned, and we still have waitlists in all our classrooms.  We’ve 
had many transitioning up to new/older classrooms to start the year, and it’s been 
exciting to see the progression. 
Unfortunately, we continue to have staffing challenges, and while we still have a core 
group of teachers, there has been a great deal of turnover.  It’s often a struggle to find 
qualified individuals who want to do this job because they love it, and not just to have a 
job, and/or make ends meet. 
 
Curriculum/Safety   

During our fall months, teachers and kiddos were very busy in the 
classroom.  For the week of Oct. 12th, all classrooms focused on the 
theme, “Welcome Fall”, and had to represent their own interpretation 
of fall through door and bulletin board decorating. 

Classrooms were very busy during the month of November, creating 
projects, gifts for parents and special tasks that incorporated 
thankfulness and Thanksgiving.  

On Wednesday, Oct. 14th, we had our 
first Fire Drill of the year.  It just so happened to be one of 
our busiest days, and we had 60 kiddos evacuating the 
building.  Surprisingly, it was probably one of our best 
drills yet. 
 
 



On Thursday, Oct. 15th, we participated in the Great Shakeout, to practice our 
earthquake preparedness.  Although it was a very 
successful drill, it opened our eyes to things we need to do 
to ensure we are fully prepared. 
 
On Friday, Oct. 30th, we had our first ever Halloween 
parade at Lil’ Sprouts.  Almost all kiddos were dressed up 
in costumes, and parents came to see them march around 
the gym, showing up their outfits.  It was a lot of fun! 
 
Port of Play  
Port of Play has been pretty busy this Fall.  As soon as the weather turns wet and/or 
cold, parents seem to seek refuge with us, as they need a warm, dry place for their 
children to burn some energy. 
 
Parents’ Night Out has continued to have steady attendance of approximately 10-15 
kids every weekend.  It seems that more parents are becoming aware of this service, 
and are taking advantage of it regularly.   
 
On Friday, Oct. 23rd, we held our annual Free Family Pumpkin Carving.  We had a great 
turn out, approximately 40-50 people throughout the evening.  Families brought their 
pumpkins, and we provided the stencils, tools and treats. 
 
PARKS MAINTENANCE 

This fall the Maintenance Division accomplished:  
• Completed Aquatic Center closure activities:  replaced lights, showers, pool 

plaster, HVAC, removed shower area tile, annual maintenance of equipment.  All 
work completed on time and under budget 

• Routine facilities/grounds maintenance 
• Coordinating with Clatsop Community College to renovate Alderbrook Hall.  First 

phase of work will be re-siding the south exterior wall of the building, Parks Dept. 
will provide materials, CCC will provide labor and expertise.  Work will 
commence May 2016 

• 10 full burials 
• 12 cremation burials 
• Special events support: hall rentals, CHIP In’s,  City Service Fair, Brew Cup, 

Monster Bash, stage & chair rentals 
• Coordinated with Lewis and Clark Heritage Association and Tongue Point Job 

Corps to install interpretive sign, bench and plaque at east end of Riverwalk at 
Alderbrook Lagoon 

• Hazard tree removals in parks 
• Implemented Smoke Free Parks—Installed “No Smoking” signs in all parks and 

park areas 
• Coordinated with Job Corps to repaint Doughboy Monument 
• Installed three porta-potties along Riverwalk 
• “Pinked” Column for Breast Cancer Awareness Month in October 
• Two Staff obtained Certified Pool Operator credentials 
• Working to locate and resolve leak in Recreation Pool pipes 
• Provided input and support for Parks Master Planning Committee site tour and 

ongoing planning efforts 



• Scheduled replacement of sand filter media and components at Aquatic Center 
• Provided input and support on Oceanview Cemetery Turf Renovation RFP— 

Renovation proposal was not approved by City Council due to lack of long-term 
solutions for grounds at OVC 

• Contracted Arbor Care Tree Specialists to add supports and cabling to Big Leaf 
Maple in LaPlante Park to preserve the tree after rot and wind damage was 
discovered in the trunk 

 
CHIP-in 
 
This fall, from October - December, 30 CHIP-in volunteers have dedicated more than 90 
hours to various park clean-up events. Volunteers have put in over 10  yards of bark 
mulch, removed invasive species, trimmed overgrown plants, picked up trash, and 
painted the inside and outside of many park facilities. 
During this time, the CHIP-in Volunteer Coordinator, Melissa Keyser, began sending out 
a new monthly volunteer e-mail with over 100 recipients. Planning for 2016 CHIP-in 
events is almost complete and a schedule will be posted on the Astoria Park and 
Recreation website soon. 
 
CHIP-in Events: 
Maritime Memorial Park, October 16th: 

• CHIP-in partnered with the Kennewick Coast Guard 
o The Coast Guard reaches out to 

local Coast Guard stations when 
members are promoted – 
Kennewick wanted to reach out 
to Astoria and invited them to 
participate in a community 
service, CHIP-in, event 

• 9 volunteers 
• Volunteers cutback overgrown 

shrubbery, trimmed trees, filled in 
bark mulch, picked up trash and 
pulled weeds 

 
Pioneer Cemetery, November 1st: 

• Cancelled due to stormy weather 
• About 10+ volunteers still showed up 

 
Astoria Recreation Center, November 15th: 

• 10 volunteers 
• Volunteers painted the “Kid Zone” 

bright and fun colors 
• Volunteers also picked up trash, wiped 

down the inside of the facility, removed 
old tape, mopped, cleaned 
baseboards, and put in bark mulch 

 
 
 
 



 
Lil’ Sprouts & Port of Play, December 20th: 

• 11 volunteers  
• Painted the PoP Grocery store 
• Painted outdoor murals leading into Lil’ Sprouts 

and Port of Play 
• Volunteers also wiped down surfaces inside 

Port of Play 
• Volunteers were able to choose a gift from the 

CHIP-in “Giving Tree” as a thank you for their 
time and participation 

 
 
OCEAN VIEW CEMETERY  
 
Cemetery Software System  
The third phase of cemetery data was completed in late October.  This phase of the 
data entry is the phase we have been waiting on to finish “populating” our online map 
with persons who have bought or are buried in the plots.  
The original plan was that upon completion of this phase, the cemetery map, which is 
already viewable to the public, would become populated so that folks can locate loved 
ones without the assistance of city staff online. Staff is coordinating with contractor Mark 
Scott to move forward with this part of the project.   
Now that phase 3 is complete, staff has begun phase 4 data entry, which will enhance 
and support the records of those who are buried in the cemetery.  This phase will add 
details such as payments, but is not an integral part of documentation. 
 
Cemetery Grounds Maintenance  
Ocean View Cemetery continues to be a challenge to maintain and manage with our 
minimal resources.  It takes approximately 40 man hours to mow the entire grounds and 
weed eating has been outsourced to the local juvenile work crew for two weekends a 
month during the summer months.  Burials and cremations add to the toll the cemetery 
exacts on the Maintenance Division’s capacity, because these events often cannot be 
foreseen or planned for beyond a three day window. 
 
Mausoleum  
The Parks and Recreation Department also partnered with Clatsop Community 
Colleges Historic Preservation Program to receive a $3,200 grant from the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department to conduct a workshop assessing and repairing the 6 
leaded-glass windows in the Mausoleum. The workshop will be held this spring.  
 
OTHER PROJECTS 

Lawn and Plant Management Task Force 
The Plant and Lawn Management Task Force was created to address concerns raised 
about the use of herbicides and fertilizers in parks and open spaces.   
 
The task force consisted of: 

• Norma Hernandez, Northwest Food Web 
• Fred White-Gardener, Concerned Citizen 
• John Whisler, Head Superintendent, Astoria Golf and Country Club 
• Tom Duncan-Physician, Lower Columbia Clinic 



• Howard Rub, Athletic Director Astoria High School 
• Jessica Schleif, Master Gardener 
• Drew Herzig, City Council Liaison 
• Dave McElroy, Friends of McClure Park 
 

The task force met four times over the course of 8 months: 
• February 11, 2015:  Meeting agenda included values, goals, and desired 

outcomes for the task force were established  
• March 14, 2015: Meeting agenda included site tour of a variety of parks and 

open spaces (Alderbrook Lagoon, Fort Astoria, Niemi Field, Lindstrom Park, 
Shively Park) 

• April 2, 2015: Meeting agenda included evaluation of progress and draft of policy 
recommendations 

• September 9, 2015: Meeting agenda included review of policy 
recommendations, updates and final approval 

 
The task force developed recommendations for a final herbicide/pesticide use policy 
that was presented to and recommended by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
during the September 23, 2015 meeting.  Finally, the policy was presented to and 
adopted by the Astoria City Council during the October 5, 2015 meeting.  
 
Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
The Parks and Recreation Department’s comprehensive planning process is underway. 
Beginning in fall of 2015, the first phase of the project involved extensive community 
engagement and evaluation of existing conditions. Outcomes from this phase of the 
project included feedback from over 1,000 community participants (through public 
meetings, surveys, focus groups, and a tour of Astoria’s Parks and Recreation system), 
and a draft report on the current inventory, history, existing conditions, and maintenance 
of the department’s parks, trails, and facilities. 
 
Currently transitioning into the second phase of the project, the RARE AmeriCorps 
Parks and Recreation Planner, along with Department staff and the Mayor-appointed 
Citizen Advisory Committee, will begin to develop an initial set of Master Plan 
recommendations. This set of recommendations will be formulated by evaluating the 
community feedback collected in the first phase of the project, and conducting an 
assessment of the department’s level of service in comparison to State of Oregon 
recommendations, as well as comparison with similar communities in the region. 
 
The third and final phase of the project will kick off in the spring of 2016. The initial set 
of Master Plan recommendations will be refined through additional public meetings and 
surveys, as well as continued input from the Citizen Advisory Committee. The planning 
process will conclude with a final set of recommendations and strategy for 
implementation, before being presented to approving boards for adoption in the 
summer. 
 
Astoria Column Restoration 
The Column restoration began in March and was completed on October 9th. With the 
exception of wind storms and nearby road construction, the Column grounds have 
observed regular hours during the restoration, and docents have be onsite to share 
information about the restoration project.  
The restoration includes: 



• Cleaning the exterior surface of the Column, comprising of a series of 
historic murals that spiral from bottom to top of the 125-foot structure.  

• Structural repairs to stabilize cracking, delamination and spalling; architectural 
repairs; and additional structural surveys, evaluations and inspections.  

• Preservation and rehabilitation of the artwork/mural on the Astoria Column 
• Restoration of the cupola and repairs to the observation deck  

 
Because of the Astoria Columns location high on Coxcomb Hill, the Column is exposed 
to punishing environmental conditions like gale-force winds and driving rain that inflict 
wear on the structure and its artwork. Restorative efforts are conducted as dictated by 
the state of the structure and the effects of variable weather conditions, and are hoped 
to last 10 to 20 years. 
 
More than half the cost of the estimated $1 million project is required to repair 
the Column artwork and structure itself. The balance is allocated to restoration and 
repair of the plaza that surrounds the base of the Column, landscape improvements, 
and installation of new energy-efficient LED lighting which is scheduled to be completed 
in April 2016. Over $700,000 has already been committed to the project by private 
donors, and the balance is being raised through local and regional fundraising 
campaigns and events. 
 
The most recent major art restoration performed on the Astoria Column was completed 
in 1995. Additional improvements to the grounds were completed in 2004, and the 
Column’s spiral staircase was replaced in 2008. With the exception of the stair 
replacement, these projects, totaling over $3.5 million, were funded exclusively by 
Friends of Astoria Column through campaigns and grants 
 
Peoples Park 
The City of Astoria Park located on 16th and Marine Drive known as Peoples Park, has 
a deck and observation tower that the Astoria Rotary Club constructed in the late 1970’s 
following the People Places Plan from 1977. Following its construction, the Rotary Club 
continued to maintain and care for the structure by; rebuilding a portion of the structure, 
adding an ADA ramp, adding stairs leading to the railroad tracks, and partnering with 
the Coast Guard to rebuild the stairs leading to the observation tower. 
 
Unfortunately, the Rotary Club has discontinued maintaining the structure and since 
June 18, 2015 the structure has been temporarily closed due to the structures 
hazardous state. This closure came after the Parks Maintenance team noticed one of 
the hand rails had fallen off, and upon repair found an additional rail down, several 
decking boards rotted and broken, and structural supports rotted. At this time, Parks 
and Recreation staff began requesting bids to repair the structure and began to ask the 
bigger question, of whether or not the structure will continue to be of value as it 
degrades further and requires increased levels of maintenance to keep it safe for the 
public’s use. In recent years, the Parks and Recreation Department staff have been 
challenged with the task of keeping the structure safe for all users, as a large amount of 
illegal drugs, drug paraphernalia, alcohol, garbage, and illegal camping are found and 
take place on and underneath the structure. 
 
After being informed that bids to repair the structure ranged from $12,000 - $16,000, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Angela Cosby, met with the Astoria Rotary Board on 
July 13, 2015 to seek assistance in repairing or removing the structure and ways to 
increase positive use of the park. Following this meeting, the Rotary President and 

http://astoriacolumn.org/about/test-gallery/
http://astoriacolumn.org/about/test-gallery/
http://astoriacolumn.org/


Board solicited feedback from the clubs members. During Mondays, August 10th Rotary 
Board meeting, the Board reviewed the feedback received from its members and 
decided that; the Rotary Club was not in a position to financially contribute to the 
needed repairs, they would like to be involved with the removal of the structure, and 
they would like to replace the structure with grass. Several Rotary members provided 
suggestions for alternative use of the space, such as a water feature, or a dog park. 
Parks and Recreation Department staff encouraged these members to participate in the 
upcoming parks master planning process, as future development of the site will be best 
determined by the direction provided in the Parks Master Plan. 
 
During the Wednesday, August 19th, Parks Advisory Board Meeting the Board 
concurred with the Parks and Recreation Department staff and Rotary’s suggestion of 
removing the platform from People’s Park. Therefore, as a donation to the Astoria 
Rotary Club, Mike Abrahams with ABA Company and Tom Alfonse with Alfonse 
Trucking have offered their services to tear down and remove the structures at no cost, 
with the exception that the work will be performed during the precipitation season when 
their businesses obligations decrease.   
 
 
            By: _________________________ 
                                                                    Angela Cosby 
 Director of Parks & Recreation 



   

 

Astor ia  Po l ice 
Department  

Dedicated to Duty 
- 

Committed to Community 2
0

1
5

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
r
t 



 2 

 

Chief’s Message 3 

Comings and Goings 4 

Organizational Chart 5 

Records Department 6 

Patrol 7 

Astoria PD gets Cellebrite 8 

Investigations 9 

Coffee with a Cop 10 

Citizen’s Police Academy 12 

Training 13 

CERT 14 

Dispatch 16 

Statistics 20 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



 3 

 

What a quick year this was. It is hard to imagine that it has 
been a year since we published last.  

We continue to struggle to keep up with the demand for our 
services. At the same time we are being asked to provide 
more services that are not traditional policing problems. We 
are also struggling with service gaps in the mental health 
system that require a significant portion of our time, in-
creases in training needs, an increase in traffic volumes and 
the resultant concerns about traffic safety.  

As a Department, we know we are not in this alone. We 
need to work with other departments within the City, other 
law enforcement agencies, community partners who provide 
services, and our citizens. Without the help and consent of 
all those groups, it is difficult, if not impossible for us to ac-
complish our mission.   

This year saw the start of a new program called Coffee with 
a Cop, which you will see featured in these  pages. It was a 
great opportunity to meet people that we don’t normally 

have conversations with over a cup of coffee. If you haven’t been to one of these events we hope you 
will make a point of attending one soon. One of the fantastic things with this program is that we sur-
prise people. Not everyone who we talk to planned on coming to the event. They just happened to be 
at the coffee shop and we took advantage of the opportunity. This gives us exposure to a portion of the 
community that we would not normally hear from.  

We were also able to revitalize our citizen’s police academy. What a great program and a great group 
of graduates. With the exception of our dispatchers, we manage to get every member of the Depart-
ment involved in some way. Building connections, talking about the work we do, having that longer, 
focused opportunity to dialogue about the business is a priceless opportunity. 

Finally, thank you! I cannot imagine a community that supports its police more. We feel it and know 
that the feeling we get from our community is not true everywhere. Thanks.—Chief Brad Johnston 

Have you liked us on Facebook? We have a vibrant community on our Facebook page that we update 
several times a week (sometimes several times an hour). You can find there: traffic alerts, quick tips, 
press releases, questionnaires, weather warnings, and appeals for information. If you want to stay up 
to date, like, follow and subscribe at: www.facebook.com/AstoriaPolice. You can also follow Chief 
Johnston at www.facebook.com/ChiefJohnston. Astoria Police are also on twitter AstoriaPD and You-
Tube user name AstoriaPolice 

 

 

 



 4 

 

We understand, if we want support it starts with a 
transparent Police Department. We want you to 
know what we do so that you can make a deter-
mination on our delivery of service. It is all fo-
cused on a service to our community. We can’t 
imagine you being able to evaluate the level of 
service we provide with no knowledge of what we 
do. This report is a tool to keep you informed  
about us.  

Comings and Goings 

These are the people that came, went and moved around during 2015 

Leaving: 

Communications Officer Donna Galich  

Communications Officer Lani Williamson  

Reserve Officer Jim Pierce  

Reserve Officer Mike Stanton 

Reserve Officer John Hord 

Joining: 

Communications Officer Candace Pozdolksi 

Communications Officer Vanessa Ahl 

Promoted/Appointed: 

Sgt Eric Halverson  promoted to Deputy Chief 

Officer Thomas Litwin appointed to Detective 

Officer Chris McNeary promoted to Sergeant 

Why an  Annual Report ? 

Pictured left: Deputy Chief Eric Halverson participating in HazMat 
training with the Regional Hazardous Materials Team.  

Pictured above: Sergeant McNeary and Chief Johnston waiting 
to take the oath of their new offices at an Astoria City Council 
Meeting.  



 5 

 

Astoria Police Department 
Organizational Chart  



 6 

 

Records Division 

The Records Division consists of the Administrative 
Services Manager, one full-time Records Specialist 
and one part-time Records Specialist.  The Records 
Division personnel have many duties in addition to 
processing cases. Some of these include data entry of 
traffic citations, completing attorney discoveries, 
serving and tracking subpoenas, fulfilling records re-
quests and issuing taxi driver’s licenses.  

Pictured above are Records Specialists Kat Taylor and 
Melinda Humphrey. 

Also part of the support services function is 
our Evidence Room (pictured right). Part of 
our 2012 remodel was a move away from 
stray shelves, gym baskets, lockers, and cabi-
nets to a high density system that allowed us 
to consolidate the evidence room into a 
smaller footprint improving the organization 
of evidence.  

The Department contracts with GovDeals.com 
to aid in the disposal of found and/or un-
claimed property from the evidence room. 
This online auction website has clients from 
around the Nation auctioning surplus. If you 
are interested in picking up vehicles, bicycles, 
tools, jewelry, knives and electronics this is a 
site you should be checking out. Anyone is 
eligible to sign up as a bidder. You can check-
out our current offerings at 
www.govdeals.com/astoriapd  

Records has seen a substantial increase this year as 
compared to previous years. With an increase of over 
700 cases (2014 had a total of 4297 and 2015 will end 
the year with nearly 5100) the trend is certainly upward. 
Since 2011 we will have seen over 1200 additional cases 

to process. The Records Division also fulfills requests for copies of records. The Division sees an average of 35 
requests a week for copies of records. An increase from 20 last year. These requests can be time consuming 
since each report must be reviewed to determine if there is information in reports that must be redacted. If re-
daction is required each case could take several hours to comply with each request.  

http://www.govdeals.com/astoriapd


 7 

 

The Astoria Police Department Patrol Division, 
when it is fully staffed, is made up of 11 officers 
including two patrol sergeants who maintain a 24 
hour a day, 365 day a year schedule.  This year 
saw several staffing challenges due to both on the 
job and off the job illnesses and injuries which 
took several officers off the street for prolonged 
and overlapping periods of time.  At one point 
there were only 7 sworn staff members in the 
agency to cover Patrol’s two person minimum 
staffing schedule. This situation was identified as 
one of our most dire staffing challenges in the past 
25 years.  Despite these staffing challenges, we 
were able to maintain our minimum staffing with dedication and sacrifice on the part of all sworn mem-
bers of the Police Department.  Fortunately the majority of our Patrol Division is back to work. 

Our Patrol Division is the backbone of the Police Department’s operations for first response to calls for 
service.  This year is on track to be one of the busiest years in our history for calls for service.  

Patro l  

Astoria Police investigated 18 burglary cases in 
2015 that involved a single suspect, 33 year old 
Jesse Pitts.  Officers first narrowed in on Pitts after 
locating an apology letter dubbing himself “The des-
perate squatter” at the scene of a burglary.  The 

burglaries were not what police typically see.  Pitts would break into or enter dwellings to steal food 
and hygiene items.  He was believed to even have stayed in the basement of a residence while the 
homeowners carried on their normal activities, unbeknownst of the man in the basement.  Several 
more of these burglaries with similar modus operandi occurred covering over 40 blocks of Astoria 
neighborhoods. At one point Pitts came face to face with an owner finding him in her basement.  In an-
other a 17 year old resident confronted him at the residence food pantry.  Some victims initially did not 
report missing or moved items, thinking their memories had played tricks.  Officer Clausen went door 
to door talking to neighbors within a couple block radius of a burglary to try and develop leads.  A 
neighbor pointed out a vacation house.  Officer Clausen did a perimeter check and found an unlocked 
slider door.  He contacted the owners who were out of the area.  They gave permission to search the 
house.  During a search of the house it was apparent someone had recently been there.  While search-
ing the home, officers noticed insulation hanging below an attic door.  Pitts was found hiding inside.  A 
few weeks later Pitts was released and several similar burglaries occurred.  Pitts, who was living in the 
urban forest was again located by officers and interviewed.  During the interview Sergeant McNeary 
was able to obtain information linking Pitts to numerous burglaries.   

 

Case Highlight 
Serial Burglar 

 



 8 

 

Astor ia Po l ice Department 
Gets Cel lebr i te  

It is no surprise to anyone that more and more people are using mobile devices, tablets and 
phones as part of their day to day lives, the same is true of the criminal element. Until recently 
local law enforcement agencies had to travel to the Northwest Regional Computer Forensic Labo-
ratory (NWRCFL) to process any mobile devices that were seized as evidence to process phones. 
This meant that there were long waits to process the evidence and that it was only done in limited 
cases. Many phones require the better part of a day to process this way and in some cases sev-
eral devices were seized requiring multiple day trips to obtain the evidence.  

 

These mini computers can 
divulge a wealth of informa-
tion to investigators. After 
all, many people take pic-
tures, access bank records 
and social media, text, in-
stant message and email 
using this portable com-
puter that they carry with 
them everywhere they go. 
Astoria Police only process 
these devices under con-
sent or a valid search war-
rant. 

 

The Astoria Police Department budgeted for the item and obtained it this year. After the purchase. 
grant funds were located that may reimburse for the purchase and allows for the use of the soft-
ware by all agencies in the county. Detective Thomas Litwin attended a Certified Logical Operator 
and Physical Analyst Course that allows him to do in depth evaluations of the phones. Less in 
depth data can be obtained by other users.  

 

Prior to obtaining this software and allowing us to use it locally, mobile devices were only proc-
essed in the most serious of cases. Now, mobile devices are much more likely to be processed in 
the search for additional evidence. In a single month local agencies including the Astoria Police 
Department, the Clatsop County Sheriff’s Office, the Seaside Police Department and Warrenton 
Police Department, have processed 24 devices  in cases ranging from drug charges to child sex 
abuse, sexual assault cases and death investigations.  



 9 

 

The Investigations Division at the Department currently has two detectives assigned. There was only a single 
detective assigned to the office until October 2014 when it was decided to deploy a second detective. The 
decision was made because the high volume of cases experienced over several years had become too much 
for a single detective. In 2015 our detectives handled over 200 investigations. Over the past year there has 
been high-profile investigations in Astoria that include the kidnapping of a 15 year old girl from California by 
a 48 year old male, two home invasion robberies, and two heroin overdose deaths. 

Cases investigated by the detectives may include serious assaults, robberies, sexual assaults, missing per-
sons, child abuse investigations, death investigations, fire investigations, and financial crimes. The Detec-
tive’s Office will see the case through prosecution and works closely with the Clatsop County District Attor-
ney’s Office from the beginning of the case through resolution. 

Patrol Officers will generally conduct the initial case interviews and forward the case to the detectives for fur-
ther investigation and follow-up. A detective can be called out during the night or on weekends in a case 
where there is significant injury, an active threat of harm, or the case that has the potential to become a long 
term investigation. 

The Investigations Division is currently part of the Clatsop County Major Crime Team and the Clatsop County 
Multi Disciplinary Child Abuse Team.  

Featured Case 
 Home Invasion Robbery 

In April 2015 Police responded to a resi-
dence in Astoria that was first reported as 
having two victims with gunshot wounds to 
the head. As officers were responding to 
the scene, other information was received 
that two armed males wearing bandanas 
over their faces entered the residence and 
assaulted the victims by deploying chemi-
cal spray and striking them with a baton 
and handgun. Officers were able to deter-
mine there were no gunshots fired during 
the incident, but victims did receive sub-
stantial injuries when they were struck 
with weapons. 

A suspect vehicle description was provided by wit-
nesses, and the vehicle was observed shortly after by the Warrenton Police traveling on Highway 101 
southbound but officers were not able to catch up to it. A Seaside Police Detective who was coming to 
Astoria to assist in the robbery investigation, observed the vehicle in the parking lot at a café in War-
renton. Three suspects were detained and interviewed at that time, but a fourth suspect had fled the 
area on foot prior to police arrival. At the time, investigators were still putting pieces of the puzzle 
together at the scene, and the three suspects that were contacted at the café were released. The sus-
pect vehicle was impounded and transported to a secured garage where investigators served further 
search warrants for evidence.  

Over the next several months, investigators were able to identify the suspects in the case and what 

Gun recovered in robbery suspect vehicle.  

Invest igat ions  



 10 

 

Invest igat ions  
Featured Case (Cont inued)  

Coffee wi th a Cop  

In 2015 the Astoria Police Department discovered a suc-
cessful program for putting citizens together with police 
officers in a positive environment. There are no speeches 
and there is no agenda other than having an arena to 
meet over a cup of coffee.   

Coffee with A Cop started in Hawthorne, California.  The 
idea was to interact in a more positive light with the 
community.  With new technology, the ways to interact 
with the public have further detached the police from the 
public they serve.  Coffee with a Cop is a low tech solu-
tion to an ever increasing high tech problem.  
 

(Continued on page 11) 

Officer Nicole Riley talking to citizens at 3 Cups Coffee House 
at the first Coffee with a Cop 

their roles in the crimes were. Three sus-
pects cooperated with investigators and in-
vestigators were able to corroborate their 
stories with information already known. 
Kevin Morse, Tasha Van Dolah , and 
Amanda Preston all pled guilty to Robbery 
III and were sentenced to supervised pro-
bation with prison time if they do not com-
plete their probation. Leticia Westfall was 
sentenced after she pled guilty to Hindering 
Prosecution and she received supervised 
probation.  Joseph Armstrong admitted to 
being the masked intruder holding the 
handgun. Armstrong pled guilty and was 
sentenced to 70 months in prison.  Anthony 
Lane was identified as one of the masked 
intruders who entered the residence. In De-
cember he was the final suspect to enter a 
plea. Lane pled guilty to two counts of Rob-
bery II and received 70 months in prison.  

This case is a great example of teamwork and how important it is to maintain working relationships with 
other agencies. We were assisted in the investigation by the Clatsop County Major Crime Team, Clatsop 
County District Attorney’s Office, Tillamook County Sheriff’s Office, and the US Marshals. DNA collected at 
the scene and on key pieces of evidence was processed by the Oregon State Police Forensics Laboratory 
in Portland, Oregon. This investigation took over 8 months, involved 16 written reports, 6 search war-
rants, 4 cellular devices downloaded and hundreds of hours reviewing case information and conducting 
follow-up interviews.  

Expandable baton located in the suspect vehicle.  



 11 

 

Not all the conversation is serious. Sergeant McNeary, Deputy 
Chief Halverson, Chaplain Gaidos, and Norma Hernandez pictured.  

Coffee with a Cop  
 (cont inued)  

Hawthorne Police Department constructed a sim-
ple recipe to cook up some sweet interactions 
between cops and citizens. This gave birth to 
Coffee with a Cop.   
 
In a little over three years, over 2000 communi-
ties are using this model in some form to build 
better relationships in their communities.  The 
framework has even gone global, being used in 
Canada, Europe, Australia, and Africa.  The prime 
element of Coffee with a Cop is the fact that the 
police and the public get to meet when they are 
not experiencing a crisis.  There are no motives, 
other than providing a chance to meet in a neu-
tral space.   
 
The City of Astoria Police Department rolled out 
this program with its first Coffee with a Cop ven-
ture in July of 2015 at 3 Cups Coffee House.  The 
program is spearheaded by Sergeant Chris 
McNeary who schedules and advertises the 
events then arranges for the officers to be there. 
The first event was enjoyed by both the officers 
and the citizens that attended.   
 
The second event took place in the beginning of 
December 2015 at Coffee Girl and was also well 
received.  Astoria Police plan to continue this 
outreach in 2016, aiming for quarterly events.  
We have already begun looking at the next loca-
tion, date, and time. We hope to vary the time, 
date and location enough that we provide addi-
tional opportunities for the public to meet their 
police officers, especially those who were not 
able to attend the first two events. 

(Continued from page 10) 

Officer Dan Koehnke answering questions from a group of citi-
zens at the December event at Coffee Girl 



 12 

 

In June and July of 2015 Astoria Po-
lice Department put on a Citizen’s 
Police Academy.  This year had 11 
students participate in the academy.  
The academy met for 3 hours on 
Wednesdays for 5 weeks.   

Students were given a wide variety 
of information regarding the opera-
tions of the Police Department and 
training that is given to all Astoria 
Police Officers.  Students were 
taught by Astoria Police Department 
staff and only one officer was unable 
to be involved in the teaching of 
courses. 

Students were given a tour of the Astoria Police Department, including dispatch and the Emergency 
Operations Center.  They were shown how records are kept and the process for entry and storage 
of evidence.  Students were also taken through the process from applying as a police officer, 
through mental and physical testing, background investigations, and the initial training process.  
They were given an updated account of the Department of Public Safety Standards and Training’s 
basic police academy from the Department’s newest officer. 

With the large amount of media coverage regarding law enforcement’s use of force, we covered this 
topic in many different forums.  On one day students were able to spend one and a half hours 
learning about the firearms and ammunition that we use.  They learned how to safely handle vari-
ous guns and were allowed to shoot numerous firearms, if they wished.  On this same day, students 
were given some instruction on the defensive tactics used by officers.  Students were shown officer 
safety tactics and the reason why officers address situations in a certain way.  Students were then 
given a presentation about the science behind human capabilities as it pertains to police officers use 
of force. 

After these discussions, students were then given the opportunity to use a use of force simulator 
called MILO.  Students were equipped with a duty belt that carried a special firearm, Taser, pepper 
spray, and flashlight.  A video scenario was then played on a large screen that would react to the 
student’s verbal commands and to their decisions to use, or not use, a force option.  After each sce-
nario the class had a discussion on the situation and on the decision to use or not to use force.  

Students were then given a presentation by District Attorney Josh Marquis.  He presented the class 
with some history of him and his office as well as how the legal process works for suspects, victims, 
law enforcement, and attorneys.  They were then given a full tour of the Clatsop County Jail and the 
process an inmate goes through, from booking to being released. 

(Continued on page 13) 

Cit izen’s  Pol ice Academy 



 13 

 

The 2015 citizen police academy students were ex-
tremely involved.  During every topic covered all stu-
dents were very engaged.  One question would lead to 
4 or 5 more.  The students wanted to be engaged in 
their learning and most topics steered away from a 
PowerPoint Presentation towards a discussion forum.  It 
seemed that the students enjoyed this more and I 
know that presenters enjoy an engaged audience. 
Given the response from this year, we will be conduct-
ing another Citizen’s Police Academy in 2016 with an 
expanded agenda to allow for even more discussion.  

One of the best things that come from this class is the relationship built between every member of the 
Department and the students in the class. Everyone walks away with an understanding of what the other 
is seeing as they look at the work we do day in and day out.  

(Continued from page 12) 

Training  

To help ensure that the officers that serve the City are well trained, officers are required to attend four 
quarterly trainings a year that are put on by the Department. During training the officers focus  on a va-
riety of skills and topics. Additionally officers train on firearms and use of force on a monthly basis.  

When selecting the topics or skills that officers train on, we often choose the skills that they use on a day 
to day basis that will help keep both themselves and the public safe.  

This year’s training focused officers on a variety of topics, including emergency vehicle operations, which 
focuses on both normal and emergency driving situations. Most people don’t think about this but driving 
is one of the skills that an officer will use every day and is an area where many officers are injured or 
killed each year.  

Other skills focused on this year include: death investigations, child abuse investigations, officer safety 
topics, leadership, crisis intervention, communications, first aid/CPR, proper use of Stop Sticks (a tire de-
flation devices designed to slow/stop a fleeing vehicle), D.U.I.I. detection and updates on case law. 

Throughout the year officers also attend classes that are taught away from the Department. Officers at-
tended training in mobile device processing, defensive tactics, background investigations, child abuse in-
vestigations, interviewing, a detective academy, and one officer attended a training that has allowed him 
to become an instructor to teach standardized field sobriety testing.  

Each officer is required to keep current on continuing education and the Astoria Police Department ex-
ceeds this requirement with every officer.  



 14 

 

CERT (Community Emergency Response Team) is a 
part of the Citizen Corps program through the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The program 
trains citizens to be prepared to take care of them-
selves, families, friends, neighbors and others in the 
event of a disaster until professional responders arrive. 
The CERT program contributes to the emergency re-
sponse capabilities in a community when needed.  

Training for CERT involves light search and rescue, fire 
safety and team organization. The team also learns 
ways to secure a home or workplace in a time of disas-
ter.  

Astoria CERT is a joint venture with Astoria Police and 
Fire Departments. All team members have been 
through a basic CERT academy. They are trained to 
support the missions of the Astoria Police and Fire De-
partments. The team leader is Officer Ken Hansen. As-
toria CERT has 20 members. Members include retired 
community members, a registered nurse, a veterinar-
ian, radio station manager, veterans advocate and sev-
eral others.  

Most team members are HAM radio operators, certified 
flaggers and are trained in CPR and first aid. The team 

(Continued on page 15) 



 15 

 

logged 601.5 volunteer hours this year, which included both training and missions. The team  provided 
traffic control for the Crab Festival, the Goonies 30th Anniversary event, the Astoria Regatta parade and 
the fire in the basement of Gimre’s shoes.  

Astoria CERT participated in the instruction of 2 CERT academies. Some members also participated in a 
joint class with Clatsop County Search and Rescue regarding ground searches. Members participated in 
an event with Astoria Kiwanis that was designed to let community members know what organizations ex-
ist in the community and what they have to offer. The team also participated in the City of Astoria Ser-
vice Fair and assisted the Police Department putting on an event called Safety City. Safety City is a pro-
gram that promotes traffic and pedestrian safety to children.  

In December 2015 Astoria CERT was activated along with Clatsop County Search and Rescue (SAR) to 
search for a missing Astoria resident. This was the first time that CERT and SAR deployed together. 

 

In the coming year CERT is planning to administer the MAP TOUR NEIGHBORHOOD PROGRAM. CERT will 
also be preparing to present to groups on the topic of emergency preparedness and will be doing joint 
training with other agencies.  

(Continued from page 14) 



 16 

 

Dispatch 
 Clatsop County Sheriff’s Office 

 Astoria Police Department 

 Warrenton Police Department 

 Port of Astoria Security 

 Westport Fire and Rescue 

 Knappa, Svensen, Burnside RFPD* 

 John Day-Fernhill RFPD* 

 Astoria Fire and Rescue 

 Olney Walluski Fire and Rescue 

 Lewis and Clark RFPD* 

 Warrenton Fire 

 Warrenton RFPD* 

 USCG Airstation Fire 

 Elsie Vinemaple RFPD* 

 Oregon State Forestry 

*RFPD is a Rural Fire Protection District 

The City of Astoria provides dispatch services for 15 separate public safety agencies.  

The Astoria 9-1-1 Center had another busy year. On average we are seeing an annual increase County 
wide in calls for service these past several years. A call for service may begin as a 9-1-1 call though 
there are many other means by which we receive these requests. A vast majority of calls for service 
are Officer initiated, such as a Traffic Stop. Some calls may begin with a citizen coming in to the Police 
Department and others can be generated by Tele Type or radio. We keep very meticulous records relat-
ing to how calls are generated as well as types of calls. This information is then used for staffing and 
planning purposes.  



 17 

 

Personnel  

No amount of technology or training can replace our 
highly skilled and caring Dispatchers. I would like to 
personally recognize and thank them all individu-
ally. They are truly amazing individuals: 

Shirley – 25 years of service 

Jodie – 14 years of service 

Summer – 7 years of service 

Kristen – 5 years of service 

Jennifer – 4 years of service 

Melanie – 3 years of service 

Candace – 2 years of service 

Vanessa – 1 year of service 

Our newest Dispatchers Candace and Vanessa bring a wealth of knowledge and experience from large 
dispatch centers in California. Candace comes to us from San Luis Obispo County Sheriffs Office and 
Vanessa from Kern County Sheriffs Office.  

Dispatch (Continued) 

Dispatcher Jennifer Peden was presented with a notice of achieve-
ment by Chief Brad Johnston for her hard work and initiative. She 
is one of several dispatchers presented with awards in 2014 

 

Technology  

Improvements   

All 9-1-1 Centers use technology to enhance 
and assist the Dispatchers with critical deci-
sion making. Astoria 9-1-1 is no different, in 
some respects we are ahead of many with 
our technological improvements. Working 
with our technology partners we now have 
an operational display for Dispatchers. In the 
above example the calls for service show as 
Icons or small pictures on the map (barking 
dog is an animal complaint) which have dif-
ferent meanings, and the available Officers 

show as black badges. If an Officer is assigned to a call for service, his badge color changes to blue. With 
this information displayed the Dispatchers are able to quickly assess the current operations, including call 
load and the location of all Police and Deputies. In the police vehicles a similar display is available for the 
Officers to use, which allows them access to more information about a call, driving directions as well as 
showing them the location of all units in service.  



 18 

 

Dispatch (Continued) 
COMMUNICATIONS 
With the need to communicate with our First 
Responders throughout the county we have a 
diverse and robust communications infrastruc-
ture. To accomplish this Dispatchers use eight 
different communication sites spread between 
Oregon and Washington.  

Some sites are on mountain tops which offer 
great coverage for certain geographic areas and 
others are at ground level. Each site has been 
specifically designed to offer maximum coverage 
in often challenging mountainous environments 
which we live. Some sites called “Voting Sites” 
listen constantly for transmissions from people 
in the field. These sites are smart enough to 
then pass on the best quality transmission to 

Commercial communications site at Tillamook Head south of Seaside. 
This site contains public safety communications gear as well as commer-
cial providers.  

the Dispatcher. We spend a fair amount of time and money maintaining these critical sites.  

TRAINING 
In May Dispatch participated in a multi-agency training exercise which simulated a dangerous anhydrous 
ammonia leak from a tanker truck. This scenario is not an unexpected possibility given the number of 
commercial vehicles using our local roads and highways. An incident of this type, even during training, 
requires an enormous amount of logistical support from the Dispatch Center. 

Astoria 9-1-1 also co-sponsored the 2015 Oregon Criminal Justice Information Security Workshop. This 
(Continued on page 19) 



 19 

 

Dispatch (Continued) 
conference was held at the Seaside Convention Center and 
drew Public Safety Officials from Law Enforcement agen-
cies, Dispatch Centers, Corrections, and others involved in 
support functions for criminal justice from Oregon and 
Washington. 

We also hosted Public Safety Training Consultants, out of 
Red Wood City California to train local Dispatchers on 
methods of handling High-Risk calls as well as Customer 
Service for 9-1-1 Professionals. Both classes were well re-
ceived by the 46 students in attendance from 15 different 
agencies.  

(Continued from page 18) 

WHAT DOES A DISPATCHER DO? 
To answer this we picked a day to look at. December 7th 2015, as another winter storm begins to 
come ashore. The picture below is a 10 minute snap-shot of activity during that afternoon. This picture 
is a screen shot of the digital logging recorder, which records all telephone and radio traffic to and from 
the Dispatch Center. In this  example we have two Dispatchers (Position 1 & 2) taking 9-1-1 as well as 
non-emergency phone calls ( 6-911 lines and 5 non-emergency ) and talking to Fire and Law Enforce-
ment units on 5 different radio channels.  

During this storm we had numerous trees and 
power lines blown down closing or obstructing 
numerous highways and streets. There were also 
several motor vehicle crashes related to the 
weather. The Dispatchers were dispatching vari-
ous Police and Fire Departments, notifying Utility 
companies, County and City Public Works, order-
ing Tows for disabled vehicles, notifying ODOT of 
any highway closure or obstruction, and posting 
weather and road closure information on our 
website which also feeds the Astoria Police Face-
book page. December the 7th resulted in 180 
calls for service and over 220 9-1-1 and non-
emergency phone calls answered in a 24 hour 
period.  

 



 20 

 

Calls for service 

The Astoria Police Department provides dispatch services for several agencies. 
The metric for work volume is calls for service. A call for service is created 
every time a resource is dispatched or a person calls requesting information, 
response, or advice. It also is created by officers discovering things (self initi-
ating).  

Calls for service is our best metric for determining the volume of work in the 
dispatch center.  Others which include percentage of busy time on the phone 
lines and radio frequencies are more difficult to track. While the amount of self 
initiated activity is declining, (likely as a result of declines in discretionary 
time), the total call volume is increasing quickly.  

Calls for Service

44579
44471

42724

38881

36000

37000

38000

39000

40000

41000

42000

43000

44000

45000

46000

2012 2013 2014 2015

Dispatch Stat is t ics  

911 Call

Duplicate

In Person

Officer Initiated

Traffic StopOther

Telephone

2015 Calls for Service by Origin

Source 2012 2013 2014 2015 

911 Call 9962 11329 11691 10782 

Duplicate 1096 1522 1671 1833 

In Person 54 104 135 205 

Officer Initiated 4998 5548 6456 7220 

Other 13 9 17 37 

Radio 15 2 2 12 

Telephone 13213 13823 15292 16563 

Traffic Stop 9530 10387 9206 7927 

Wire/TTY   1  

Grand Total 38881 42724 44471 44579 



 21 

 

Astoria PD Calls for Service 

While the previous page details why we use 
calls for service and shows the activity for all 
agencies dispatched by the Astoria Dispatch 
Center, this page details the calls for service 
requesting or initiated by members of the As-
toria Police Department.  

Stat ist ics  
Source 2012 2013 2014 2015 

911 Call 2527 2939 3122 2990 

Duplicate 317 411 442 1639 

In Person 47 76 98 166 

Officer Initiated 1650 1811 1893 2264 

Other 3 2 1 11 

Radio 2 1  7 

Telephone 5616 5673 6103 5973 

Traffic Stop 3957 4351 3655 2369 

Wire/TTY 6    

Grand Total 14119 15264 15316 15249 

Call Type 2012 2013 2014 2015

Traffic Stop 2799 2845 2540 1787

OTHER ALL 1284 1115 1126 1498

HANGUP 911 963 1360 1451 1216

DISTURBANCE 985 1022 1052 1129

SUSP CIRCUMSTANCES 977 823 839 807

INTERVIEW, FIELD 611 667 612 736

PROPERTY CRIMES 659 641 554 690

TRAFFIC CITE 1005 1327 931 546

PHONE CONTACT 120 322 451 512

TRAFFIC COMPLAINT 344 449 504 503

ASSIST OTHER AGENCY 290 358 371 472

FOLLOW UP ENTRIES 135 205 336 468

DOG/ ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 262 289 359 402

TRAFFIC ROADS 455 395 322 359

PROPERTY FOUND 195 213 253 328

MOTOR VEH ACCIDENT 284 267 305 309

INFORMATION 505 354 444 285

MISCELLANEOUS 65 197 323 272

WARRANT ARREST 188 209 212 267

WELFARE CHECK 170 189 214 258

WARRANT INFORMATION 107 126 95 207

ABANDON/JUNK 142 156 150 207

DHS REFERRAL 135 149 148 201

TRESPASS 45 76 171 195

ALARM FALSE 181 162 174 186

FORGERY/FRAUD 58 111 144 163

MVA,HIT & RUN 97 97 119 132

SICK PERSON CARED FOR 52 44 89 115

PROPERTY LOST 96 110 109 114

ATTEMPT TO LOCATE 62 68 68 96

ASSIST RENDERED 79 115 104 80

UNAUTH ENTRY MV 64 51 42 78

MISSING PERSON 86 69 72 75

TRUCK INSPECTION 181 220 214 65

Assorted Other 438 463 418 491

ASTORIA PD CALL TYPES 

When calls for service come in, Dispatchers 
categorize them in broad categories. These 
may change after the officer arrives and after 
further investigation, the call may become 
something completely different from its initial 
classification. The table at left includes infor-
mation as categorized by the dispatcher. As 
an example of how this classification works, a 
call of a bar fight could start as a disturbance, 
upon investigation the officer could learn that 
a victim was assaulted. This would result in 
the investigation being classified as an as-
sault, even though the initial call was a dis-
turbance.   

Some notable changes in 2015: Over the four 
years in this table the number of identified 
mental health issues officers have responded 
to (Sick Person Cared for) have doubled. 
Traffic stops and citations are down from pre-
vious years. This was expected since the offi-
cers directed time is increasing, self initiated 
activity is decreasing. Warrant entries and 
trespass complaints are also greatly in-
creased. Finally, truck inspections have 
dropped along with the loss of federal pass 
through dollars that funded this focused en-
forcement effort.  



 22 

 

Astoria PD Calls for Service 

While the previous page details why we use 
calls for service and shows the activity for all 
agencies dispatched by the Astoria Dispatch 
Center, this page details the calls for service 
requesting or initiated by members of the As-
toria Police Department.  

Stat ist ics  
Source 2012 2013 2014 2015 

911 Call 2527 2939 3122 2990 

Duplicate 317 411 442 1639 

In Person 47 76 98 166 

Officer Initiated 1650 1811 1893 2264 

Other 3 2 1 11 

Radio 2 1  7 

Telephone 5616 5673 6103 5973 

Traffic Stop 3957 4351 3655 2369 

Wire/TTY 6    

Grand Total 14119 15264 15316 15249 

SPEED RELATED

DRIVING WHILE 
SUSPENDED -
VIOLATION

DRIVING 

UNINSURED
NO OPERATORS 

LICENSE

FAILURE TO 
OBEY TRAFFIC 

CONTROL 
DEVICE

DUII

UNLAWFUL 

CELL PHONE 
USE

FAIL TO STOP 

AT CROSSWALK 

RECKLESS 
DRIVING

ALL OTHER (42 
DIFFERENT 

OFFENSES)

Citations 
Nationwide, when surveyed, traffic violations are one of the most important police issues on the minds of 
most communities .  

While the Astoria Police Department firmly believes that education and engineering are important to im-
proving traffic safety, we also believe in enforcement. 

Astoria Police do not have a dedicated traffic unit but instead ask officers to carry on traffic enforcement 
and education on a daily basis in conjunction with their other duties. This does two things. It empowers 
the officer who is handling other calls in the residential neighborhoods to deal with the issues in that 
neighborhood while he is  there. It also means that all of our officers are contributing to the solution. Not 

Total Citations  

2013 2014 2015 

1294 1383 867 

just one “traffic cop.” 

Citations are down as our dispatched 
incidents require more time to deal 
with and officers have less discretion-
ary time.  

In addition to being busier, we had 
several injuries and illnesses this year 
that caused vacancies. All totaled, we 
lost a full time position from Patrol 
this year to illness and injuries. 



 23 

 

Stat is t ics  (Cont inued)  
Calls for service frequently require no action 
on the part of the officer and no requirement 
to document what occurred, outside of the 
call. However, when something requires addi-
tional documentation the officer will write a 
case. As the cases table indicates, while the 
number of calls remained stable last year, 
things requiring more documentation in-
creased significantly.  

3679 3793
4264

5085

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

5500

Police Officer Staffing 

Staffing with Police Officers is a challenge for the As-
toria Police Department. Our staffing rates have re-
mained stable for many years, changing by one here 
and there as grants could be located. No matter how 
we slice it, we could use more bodies. In general, we 
have a two person staffing for Patrol. Our best staff-
ing scenario increases to three on occasion but not 
regularly.  

The number of “sworn” personnel per thousand is 
one measure of staffing levels. Astoria enjoys a 1.6 
ratio here. Other similar or near agencies are indi-
cated in the table at right.  

Another indication for staffing would be calls per offi-
cer. Since we have dispatch data for all Clatsop 
County law enforcement agencies we know that data 
as well.  

Looking at the Calls for service per officer it is appar-

Agency Population Staffing/ 

1,000 

population 

Authorized 

Staffing 

Cannon Beach 1695 4.1 7 

Lincoln City 7930 3.3 26 

Seaside 6476 2.9 19 

Tillamook 5001 2.6 13 

Warrenton 5135 2.3 12 

Newport 9968 2.1 21 

Gearhart 3 1467 2.0 

Cottage Grove 17 8910 1.9 

Florence 15 8507 1.8 

Astoria 16 9516 1.6 

Coos Bay 24 15650 1.5 

National Avg  <10,000 2.3 

National Avg  10,000— 
24999  

2 

 

Calls 
/ Officer Officers 

APD 957.2 16 

SPD 865.3 19 

WPD 771.8 11 

CCSO 661.2 22.5 

CBPD 460.4 7 

GPD 331.3 3 

ent how this staffing level translates for the Astoria Police Officer. This 
year was also exacerbated by the fact that we have been unable to fill a 
position because of recruitment issues which are being noticed nationally 
as well. In addition to this position we have not been able to fill, we have 
lost another full time employee equivalent due to illness and injuries. Ma-
jor medical injuiries caused by an off duty car crash, an on duty shoulder 
injury requiring surgery, and a serious medical diagnosis totaled well 
over a year’s wages paid for minimal return in labor. Those two positions 
are included in the 16 officers authorized.  

Astoria PD Cases 



 24 

 

Racial Profiling Data 
In 2009 the Astoria Police Department began 
collecting data related to racial profiling. We 
did not, and still do not, believe we have an 
issue related to racial profiling but knew that 
if we did not capture data we would never be 
able to have a factual discussion.  

In addition to the perceived race of the 
driver, officers capture the reason for the 
stop (Traffic, BOLO, Etc), whether someone 
was searched, and what the result of the 
stop was. Data includes all stops initiated by 
police officers.  

Actions after Stop 

Stops by Perceived Race 

  
2012 2013 2014 2015 Total 

White 3747 4161 3421 2222 15093 

Hispanic 221 230 189 122 878 

Asian 47 70 56 51 230 

Black 29 44 49 44 163 

Middle Eastern/ 

East Indian 
10 17 15 10 10 

Native American/ 

Indian Alaskan 
5 7 0 3 16 

 Race 

Enforcement Action W H A B M I N 
Warning 10994 624 192 134 40 4 9 
Citation Issued 2783 212 38 33 3 1 1 
Speed Warning 2750 135 49 20 9 3 2 
Speed Citation 1458 85 32 17 16 1 1 
Field Interview 946 62 2 21 4 0 2 

Commercial Vehicle Inspection 534 4 0 1 0 0 0 
DL Violation Cite 480 74 5 9 2 0 2 
Safety Belt Warning 234 4 4 2 0 0 0 
Safety Belt Citation 197 8 2 1 0 0 0 
All Other 255 9 2 2 0 0 1 

In other jurisdictions not only who gets 
stopped but what enforcement action 
they received has been questioned. Be-
low is the enforcement action taken 
after the stop by perceived race over 
the last five calendar years. Other 
races are tracked but have contact 
numbers so low they were not included 
in the data.  

White

Hispanic

Asian

Black

Other

2015 Stops by Race

Stat ist ics  (Cont inued)  













































































































 
 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

 
January 9, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  ASTORIA SENIOR CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT  
  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AMENDMENT #4 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
In July of 2015 the City Council approved a contract with Skyward Construction, Inc. for 
the Astoria Senior Center Renovation Project in the amount of $1,455,157.00.  A 
construction contingency of approximately 10% of the construction contract was set 
aside outside of the construction contract for any unforeseen circumstances that may 
arise during the project. 
 
As is with any remodeling project of the building circa 1947 it’s anticipated unforeseen 
items will emerge during the renovation process.  Prior to this current contract 
amendment #4, the previously approved contract amendments #1, #2 and #3 were in 
the amount of $31,399.38. Contract amendment #4 is related to the need to (1) perform 
more extensive preparation to the exterior building perimeter walls on the North and 
West elevations to provide a sound substrate for application of the final paint coatings at 
a cost of $2,842.00; (2) install the Walk-In Freezer purchased by the organization who 
will operate the kitchen.  The cost of $3,297.71 to install this unit is paid by the kitchen 
operator and not by the use of grant funds.  To date Contract Amendments #1, #2, #3 
and #4 would utilize $34,241.38 of the $145.515.70 of the contingency. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the contract amendment #4 in the 
amount of $6,139.71 which will amend the construction contract for the Astoria Senior 
Center Renovation Project with Skyward Construction, Inc., to the total amount of 
$1,492,696.09 
 
 
 By:        Al Jaques  

 Al Jaques, Project Manager 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT #4 
 
DATE:   January 9, 2016  
PROJECT:  Astoria Senior Center Renovation 
CONTRACTOR: Skyward Construction Inc. 
 
The purpose of this contract amendment is to account for work not covered in the bid 
items. This contract amendment amount constitutes total compensation for the change 
and the cumulative effect on the project.  
 

Item Description Cost 
 Original Contract Amount $1,455,157.00 
1 Contract Amendment No.1 $9,680.99 
2 Contract Amendment No. 2  $17,250.00 
3 Contract Amendment No. 3 $4,468.39 
4 Contract Amendment No. 4 $6,139.71 
 Contract Sum to Date $1,492,696.09 

 
This Contract Amendment becomes part of and in conformance with the existing 
contract. 
 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT APPROVED BY:     
 
_______________________         _________    
Mayor               Date              
 
_______________________         _________    
City Manager              Date    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1095 DUANE STREET FAX (503) 338-6538 
ASTORIA, OREGON 97103 PHONE (503) 338-5173 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 

January 12, 2016 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: LOAN AGREEMENT R17794 AMENDMENT 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
Funding was required to solicit design services for the City’s Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP) upon issuance of a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Permit in 2007. 
 
Council adopted Resolution No. 11-23 authorizing a DEQ CWSRF loan in the amount of 
$90,000 for design of the WWTP Effluent Treatment Upgrades project. Loan Agreement 
No. R11794 is payable in semi-annual payments of $10,262 through June 1, 2017. 
 
DEQ contacted staff regarding ability to forgive $27,000 of principal borrowing for Loan 
R11794.  The remaining balance of the loan balance is $3,467.  The FY2015-16 budget 
contains sufficient funding to cover the payoff of the balance and interest of $38 as of 
January 22, 2016. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council provide approval of Loan Agreement No. R11794 
Amendment to forgive $27,000 and to pay the remaining balance including interest 
owed through January 22, 2016 in the amount of $3,505.   
 
 

By:  
 Susan Brooks, Director of Finance  
   and Administrative Services 
 
 





















 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 
 

 
 
January 8, 2016 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE READOPTING CERTAIN STATE STATUTES TO REFLECT 

CHANGES MADE BY THE 2015 LEGISLATURE 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The first reading of this ordinance was held at the January 4, 2016 City Council 
meeting.  The 2015 legislation passed by the Oregon Legislature, for the most part, 
became effective on January 1, 2016.  Many of our City ordinances refer to or 
incorporate state statutes.  Every year, the City routinely re-adopts all referenced ORS 
sections to pick up any changes made by the legislature.  This is done by a "global 
readoption", which was the technique recommended by the League of Oregon Cities.  
The City is legally unable to prospectively adopt Oregon legislative changes, i.e., we 
cannot adopt a state statute "as it now exists and is from time to time amended."  The 
proposed ordinance has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council conduct the second reading and adopt the proposed 
ordinance. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 16-_____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE READOPTING CERTAIN STATE STATUTES 
 
 
THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Code Section 1.047 is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Readoption of Oregon Revised Statutes.  Oregon Revised Statutes adopted 
either referentially or directly in the Astoria Code, including but not limited to 
Astoria Code Sections 1.010, 1.015, 1.085, 1.211, 1.230, 1.555, 1.602, 
1.608, 1.620, 1.632, 1.638, 1.640, 1.900, 1.960, 1.961, 1.962, 1.963, 1.964; 
1.965, 1.967, 1.970, 1.971, 2.220, 2.360, 2.700, 2.705; 2.710, 3.010, 3.015, 
3.118, 5.000, 5.010, 5.100, 5.110, 5.255, 5.260, 5.300, 5.335, 5.385, 5.425, 
5.726, 5.740, 5.925, 5.931, 5.933, 6.005, 6.010, 6.025, 6.030, 6.060, 6.135, 
6.220, 6.250, 6.255, 6.305, 6.400, 6.500, 6.510, 6.520, 6.530, 6.550, 7.000, 
7.005, 8.045.15, 8.045.17, 8.045.18, 8.104, 8.138, 9.005, 9.025, 9.030, 
9.090, and 9.160, are hereby readopted to include all amendments, repeals, 
and additions made by legislative action of the State of Oregon, up to and 
including those of the 2015 legislative session.” 

 
Section 2.  This ordinance will be effective thirty (30) days after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF ____________, 2016. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _____ DAY OF ____________, 2016. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Manager 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA NAY ABSENT 
Councilor Nemlowill  
 Herzig 
 Price 
 Warr 
Mayor LaMear 
 


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda 1-19-16
	Memo 1-19-16
	5(a) CC Minutes 12-21-15
	5(b)(1) CDD Status Report
	5(b)(2) Finance Dept Status Report
	5(b)(3) Library Status Report
	5(b)(4) Parks Status Report
	5(b)(5) APD Status Report
	5(b)(6) PW Status Report
	5(c) Pump Station No. 1 Contract Amendment
	5(d) Hwy 202 Sidewalk Project
	5(e) 23rd Street Closure
	5(f) Senior Center Contract Amendment 4
	5(g) Loan Agreement CWSRF
	5(h) 16th Street CSO Separation Project
	6(a) Ordinance Readopting State Statutes
	6(b) Zilli Appeal
	Untitled



